
 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, JULY 06, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

Anyone wishing to address the city council regarding any topic on this agenda is requested to complete a 

card available at the city clerk's desk.  Speakers are respectfully requested to limit their comments to three 

(3) minutes. 

The city council prohibits the use of cell phones and other electronic devices which emit an audible sound 

during all meetings with the exception of law enforcement, fire and rescue or health care providers on 

call. Persons in violation may be requested to leave the meeting 

AGENDA 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag - Chaplain Joseph Williams - CCSO 

Roll Call 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Second and Final reading of Ordinance O-14-2021 modifying Chapter 66, Solid Waste, of the 

City Code of Ordinances.  Mike Null 

PRESENTATIONS 

2. Kimberly Miller, Camp Cadet Director would like to present a Plaque of Appreciation to the 

Council for their ongoing support. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted 

by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion 

is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. Backup 

documentation and staff recommendations have been previously submitted to the city council on these 

items. 

3. City Council establishes workshop dates for reviewing the Operating Budget and Capital 

Improvement Plan for FY 2021/2022.  Marlena Guthrie 

4. City Council establishes hearing dates for the first and final hearings to adopt the City of Green 

Cove Springs Operating Budget and Five Year Capital Improvement Plan for FY 

2021/2022.  Marlena Guthrie 

Page 1



July 06, 2021 Agenda Page 2 of 4 

 

 

5. City Council approval of Contractor’s Pay App #2 for CR 209 S in the amount of $140,481.25 

and Contractor’s Pay App #1 for Wilkes Point Road in the amount of $107,302.50 to General 

Underground under Bid Award LC 2020-06 for a total amount of $1,631,644.00.  Scott Schultz 

6. City Council approval of an exemption through June 30, 2022 for warehouse management to the 

existing Purchasing Policies to purchase PVC conduit, PVC pipe, and other appurtenances, up to 

$50,000.00, with an e-mail approval process.  Scott Schultz 

7. City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, Disbursement Request #2 

which includes Contractor’s Pay Request #1 for Williams Industrial Services, LLC, in the 

amount of $669,305.42 (already paid) and Mittauer & Associates Invoice # 21240 in the amount 

of $6,000.00, for the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), State Revolving 

Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, SRF 

Agreement No. WW1000420.  Scott Schultz 

8. City Council approval of Resolution No. R-13-2021, a resolution authorizing a new FDOT State 

Highway System Lighting, Maintenance, and Compensation Agreement. Contract No. TBD, for 

the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2028 in the amount of $36,164.70 and authorizing 

the City Manager to execute said Agreement.  Mike Null 

9. City Council approval of a PO to paint the downstairs of The City Hall Building to Florida Paint 

Company in the amount of $ 33,765.00.  Steve Thomas 

10. City Council approval for Detective Erin Vineyard to attend the Police Internal Affairs 

Course.  Derek Asdot 

11. City Council approval for Commander John Guzman to attend the Police Internal Affairs 

Course.  Derek Asdot 

12. City Council approval to issue a purchase order in the amount of $28,010.85 to Irby for electric 

conduit for the Magnolia Point Third Feed Project. Scott Schultz 

13. City Council approval of a Pay Application # 1 from KBT Contracting Corp in the amount of 

$48,302.28 for design & build out of ASACC classroom for AMIkids, and approval of Change 

Order # 1 for replacing the windows in an amount not to exceed $15,200.00.  Steve Thomas 

14. City Council approval to issue a Purchase Order to Jax Utilities Management, Inc in the amount 

of $29,884.00 for a Stormwater Repair at the Augusta Savage Facility.  Steve Thomas 

15. City Council approval of Contractor’s Pay Request #2 for Williams Industrial Services, LLC, in 

the amount of $459,854.82, for the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), 

State Revolving Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Expansion, Phase 

2, SRF Agreement No. WW1000420.  Scott Schultz 

16. City Council approval of Minutes from 5/04/2021 Regular Session.  Erin West 

17. City Council approval of Resolution No. R-12-2021, a Resolution authorizing a new FDOT 

Maintenance Agreement, Contract No. TBD, for the period of July 16, 2021 through July 15, 

2024 in the amount of $38,673.64 (annually) and authorizing the Mayor, City Clerk, and City 

Attorney to execute said Agreement.  Mike Null 

Page 2



July 06, 2021 Agenda Page 3 of 4 

 

 

18. City Council review and approval of 2022 Food Truck Friday Dates.  Michael Daniels 

19. City Council approval of the new process for Proclamations, Letter of Honor, and Key to the 

City.  Erin West 

20. City Council approval of Pay Application #5 to Terry’s Electric for Chapman Substation 

Construction Improvements in the amount of $122,787.50, leaving a balance of $299,076.80 in 

contract number LC 2020-17 in the total amount of $879,086.00. Andy Yeager 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

21. FMPA - July 2021 Bob Page 

22. City Council designation of Voting Delegate for the Annual Florida League of Cities Conference 

in Orlando, Florida on August 12-14, 2021.  Erin West 

23. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports. 

24. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

Adjournment 

 

 

The City Council meets the first and third Tuesday of each month beginning at 7:00 p.m., unless 

otherwise scheduled.  Meetings are held in City Hall at 321 Walnut Street.  Video and audio 

recordings of the meetings are available in the City Clerk’s Office upon request. 

City may take action on any matter during this meeting, including items that are not set forth within 

this agenda. 

Minutes of the City Council meetings can be obtained from the City Clerk’s office.   The Meetings 

are usually recorded, but are not transcribed verbatim for the minutes.  Persons requiring a 

verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, if 

available, or arrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting.  The cost of duplication and/or 

court reporter will be at the expense of the requesting party. 

Persons who wish to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter 

considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to 

ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and 

evidence upon which the appeal is based.  The City is not responsible if the inhouse recording is 

incomplete for any reason. 

ADA NOTICE 

In accordance with Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special 

accommodations to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s office no later than 5:00 

p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Pursuant to Section 286.0114, Florida Statutes, effective October 1, 2013, the public is invited to speak 

on any “proposition” before a board, commission, council, or appointed committee takes official action 

Page 3



July 06, 2021 Agenda Page 4 of 4 

 

 

regardless of whether the issue is on the Agenda.  Certain exemptions for emergencies, ministerial acts, 

etc. apply.  This public participation does not affect the right of a person to be heard as otherwise provided 

by law. 

EXPARTE COMMUNICATIONS 

Oral or written exchanges (sometimes referred to as lobbying or information gathering) between a Council 

Member and others, including staff, where there is a substantive discussion regarding a quasijudicial 

decision by the City Council. The exchanges must be disclosed by the City Council so the public may 

respond to such exchanges before a vote is taken. 

 

Page 4



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Mike Null, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT: Second and Final reading of Ordinance O-14-2021 modifying Chapter 66, Solid Waste, of 

the City Code of Ordinances.  Mike Null 
 

BACKGROUND 

Our current City Code regulating franchises for solid waste and construction & demolition (C&D) 

haulers requires $1,000,000 in automobile liability coverage in addition to $1,000,000 in general 

liability insurance coverage.  This amount of automobile coverage is very onerous on the smaller 

haulers, especially for C&D.  Clay County and St. Johns County both require $300,000 in automobile 

liability coverage for the C&D haulers.   

We received a request from one of our new haulers to consider reducing the amount of automobile 

liability coverage that we require.  In his case, he only has two trucks, one of which was recently 

purchased.  This excess coverage changes his automobile insurance coverage for the one truck from 

$12,000 per year to $20,000 per year. 

Staff presented this item for discussion and direction at the June 1, 2021 City Council Meeting.  As 

directed by Council, O-14-2021 was presented at the June 15 meeting Council approval to include: 

 This change in insurance coverage requirements 

 A requirement for all customers to bag loose leaves and grass clippings 

 And to require all residential and non-residential customers to take solid waste service either 

from the City or a franchise hauler. 

Ordinance O-14-2021 is presented this evening for approval on second and final reading. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Ordinance O-14-2021 upon second and final reading. 
 

Page 5

Item #1.



 

ORDINANCE NO. O-14-2021 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

AMENDING CITY CODE CHAPTER 66 ENTITLED SOLID WASTE TO 

CLARIFY THE REUIREMENTS THAT ALL CITY RESIDENTIAL 

SERVICE CUSTOMERS AND CITY COMMERCIAL ESTABLISHMENTS 

SHALL BE REQUIRED TO HAVE EITHER CONTAINERIZED OR 

NONCONTAINERIZED SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE; 

AMENDING CITY CODE SECTION 66-11(d) (1)f. TO REDUCE THE 

REQUIRED COMPREHENSIVE AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE FROM 

$1,000,000.00 TO $300,000.00 FOR CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION 

(C&D) SERVICE WITHIN THE CITY; AMENDING CITY CODE SECTION 

66-8. “DISPOSAL OF YARD WASTE; PERMITS TO BURN TRASH, 

ETC.” TO ADD SUBSECTION (c) REQUIRING ALL LEAVES AND GRASS 

CLIPPINGS TO BE BAGGED; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, 

SEVERABILITY, AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that reducing the insurance limits for C & D 

Service franchisees is reasonable and may lead to more competition among such 

franchisees within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to clarify and restate the policy that all 

residences and commercial establishments within the City shall be required to 

dispose of their garbage by containerized commercial service or a noncontainerized 

commercial service as defined in City Code Section 66-1 Definitions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City hereby clarifies and restates its policy to require that all leaves 

and grass clippings be bagged. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. CODE AMENDED. City Code Section 66- 11(d) (1)f. is hereby 

amended in its entirety to now read as follows: 

 

Sec. 66-11. - Nonexclusive franchise system for construction and demolition (C&D) 

service. 

 

(d). Application requirements. 

 

(1) f. 

The applicant shall maintain in full force and effect insurance as specified herein 

for all policies written in the applicant's name.  A comprehensive general liability 

policy shall be maintained in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage. This 

policy must also cover premises and/or operations, independent contractors, 

Page 6

Item #1.



 

products and/or completed operations.  A comprehensive automobile policy shall 

be maintained in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 $300,000.00 per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage.  This 

policy must also cover owned vehicles, hired and non-owned vehicles.  A 

worker's compensation policy shall be maintained in statutory limits in 

accordance with state law. 

 

SECTION 2. There is hereby created a new subsection (c) to Section 66-2. 

“Container required” as follows: 

 

Sec. 66-2. Container required. 

 

(c) 

The City hereby ratifies and restates its policy that all residences and commercial 

establishments within the City shall be required to dispose of their garbage by a 

containerized or noncontainerized service as defined in this chapter and to pay for 

such services either to the City or its franchisee. 

 

SECTION 3. Section 66-8 of the City Code is hereby amended to add a subsection 

(c) as follows: 

 

Sec. 66-8. Disposal of yard waste, permits to burn trash, etc. 

 

(c) 

All leaves and grass clippings shall be bagged before placement on the City right-

of-way for disposal. 

 

SECTION 4. CONFLICTS. If any portion of this Ordinance is in conflict with any 

other ordinance, then the provisions of this Ordinance shall govern. 

 

SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining 

portions of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. Upon its adoption by the City Council, this 

ordinance shall become effective immediately. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Item #1.



 

INTRODUCED AND APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY ON THE FIRST 

READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 

FLORIDA, ON THIS 15TH DAY OF JUNE, 2021. 

 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

 

             

     Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       
Erin West, City Clerk 

 

 
 

PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING BY THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, THIS 6TH DAY OF JULY, 2021. 

 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

 

              

      Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

 

 

       

L.J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

Page 8

Item #1.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Marlena Guthrie, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Council establishes workshop dates for reviewing the Operating Budget and Capital 

Improvement Plan for FY 2021/2022. 
 

BACKGROUND 

Staff has tentatively set August 3 at 9:00 am, August 5 at 9:00 am, and August 10, 2021 at 9:00 am as 

workshop dates for reviewing the Operating Budget and the Five Year Capital Improvement Plan.  Staff 

would like to recommend the following: 

August 3, 2021- 9:00 am:  Outside Agency requests, Health Insurance Plan, Wages and Benefits and all 

Utility Enterprise Funds Operating Budgets and associated Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) which 

includes Electric, Water, Wastewater, Solid Waste, Customer Service, Stormwater and Reclaimed 

Water. 

August 5, 2021- 9:00 am:  Review the General Fund Revenues and Expenditures Operating Budgets and 

associated Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), Review Police Building Debt Service Fund and Spring Park 

Debt Service Fund, and Special Revenue Funds (Building and Law Enforcement Trust) Operating 

Budgets and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).   

August 10, 2021- 9:00 am:  Wrap up session only if needed on any outstanding items from the August 3 

and August 5, 2021 workshops.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

Accept the workshop dates for reviewing the Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan for FY 

2021/2022. 
 

Page 9

Item #3.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Marlena Guthrie, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Council establishes hearing dates for the first and final hearings to adopt the City of Green 

Cove Springs Operating Budget and Five Year Capital Improvement Plan for FY 

2021/2022. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The City must set two hearing dates for the adoption of the City’s Operating Budget and Five Year 

Capital Improvement Plan for the fiscal year 2021/2022.  The City may not hold its hearings at the same 

time as the Clay County School Board or Clay County Board of Commissioners.  The School Board will 

hold its hearings on July 27 and September 9 and the County will hold its hearings on September 14 and 

September 28, therefore staff proposes the City hold its first hearing to tentatively adopt the Operating 

Budget and Five Year Capital Improvement Plan on September 7, 2021 at 7:00 pm and its final hearing 

on September 21, 2021 at 7:00 pm in the City Council Chambers. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

To set September 7, 2021 at 7:00 pm for the tentative hearing date and September 21, 2021 at 7:00 pm 

as the final hearing date to adopt the City of Green Cove Springs Operating Budget and Five Year 

Capital Improvement Plan for FY 2021/2022. 
 

Page 10

Item #4.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Contractor’s Pay App #2 for CR 209 S in the amount of 

$140,481.25 and Contractor’s Pay App #1 for Wilkes Point Road in the amount of 

$107,302.50 to General Underground under Bid Award LC 2020-06 for a total amount of 

$1,631,644.00. 

 

BACKGROUND 

On June 16, 2016 the City Council approved the Rate Study conducted by Staff and Mittauer & 

Associates.   

On March 21, 2017, Council approved a Task Order with Mittauer & Associates for $50,000.00 for 

development of a Water Master Plan. 

On June 19, 2018, the City Council approved the Water Master Plan conducted by Staff and Mittauer.  

The Master Plan included a thorough review of the existing Water Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

and resulted in an update to the CIP.  As a result of the updated CIP, Staff requested an update to the 

Water portion of the Rate Study to evaluate financing options and alternatives to CIP financing. 

On September 4, 2018, City Council approved a Task Authorization with Mittauer & Associates for 

$12,000.00 to update the Water Rate Study.   

At the March 5, 2019 City Council meeting Staff and Mittauer presented the updated Water Rate Study 

which was subsequently approved by the City Council.  The City Council directed staff to return with an 

Ordinance authorizing the borrowing of funds to complete the immediate and future CIP needs.  Staff 

was also directed to draft an RFP to secure a loan for the “Priority 1” immediate need CIP projects. 

The Priority 1, Reynolds Water System Improvements, total design and construction estimate is 

$1,370,000.00 

The Priority 2, Harbor Road, Bonaventure and Magnolia Point Cul-de-sac, total design and construction 

estimate is $4,850,000.00. 

The Priority 3, Reynolds High Service Pumps & Well 2 design and construction estimate is 

$2,500,000.00. 

The Priority 4, asbestos concrete (AC) pipe replacement. Design and construction estimate is 

$6,620,000.00 

The Priority 5, Governors Creek Water Main, design, and construction estimate is $360,000.00 

Design and permitting for Priorities 3-5 cost estimate is $1,424,000.00  

Total 2019 Water CIP Cost Estimate is $17,124,000.00  

Page 11

Item #5.



Council approved Ordinance No. O-07-2019 on First Reading as to Form Only on 3/19/19 which 

authorized staff to borrow up to $18,000,000.00 for capital improvements to the City's Water System. 

Council approved Ordinance No. O-07-2019 on Second and Final Reading on 4/2/19 which authorized 

staff to borrow up to $18,000,000.00 for capital improvements to the City's Water System 

On April 2, 2019 staff was directed to draft an RFP to secure a loan for the "Priority 1" immediate CIP 

projects.  The Priority 1, Reynolds Water System Improvements, total design and construction estimate 

is $1,370,000 plus costs and fees related to the issuance of the loan.  

On April 2, 2019, Council adopted Ordinance No. O-07-2019 authorizing the borrowing of up to 

$18,000,000 for capital improvements to the City's water system.  Staff was also directed to draft an 

RFP to secure a loan for the "Priority 1" immediate CIP projects.  The Priority 1, Reynolds Water 

System Improvements, total design and construction estimate is $1,370,000 plus costs and fees related to 

the issuance of the loan.   

During the May 21, 2019 meeting, Council authorized staff to award the loan for improvements to the 

City's water distribution system in Reynolds Park to Synovus Bank.  Synovus Bank was chosen to 

finance the Water Utility Revenue Note, Series 2019 with a fixed 2.63% interest rate for 10 years 

without premium or prepayment penalty.  This loan is secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues of 

the City’s Water Utility System.  The net revenues pledge for the Water Utility Revenue Note, Series 

2019 will be obligated for the ten-year term of the loan.  The maturity date for this loan is April 1, 2029. 

A formal bid was conducted by city staff and Mittauer for the Reynolds Water System Improvements.  

Included as an alternate was the extension of water & sewer services to MOBRO which came up at the 

end of the design and was added. 

City staff and the engineer of record have reviewed the received bids and certified General Underground 

as the qualified bidder. 

Through value engineering and project optimization the total amount for the Reynolds improvements 

was $684,724.00, far below the $1,350,000.00 estimate.  This enabled staff to include financing for the 

extension of water services to and across the MOBRO property to them water.  MOBRO will be 

contributing approximately $150,000.00 of the $314,275.00 cost of the extension for water and sewer 

services.  The system has been sized for future expansion east on State Road 16. 

City Council approved Bid Award LC 2020-06, Reynolds Water System Improvements in the amount of 

$685,724.00 (Base Bid), and Alternate #1 (water & sewer extension to MOBRO) in the amount of 

$314,275.00 for a total amount of $1,000,449.00 to General Underground on 5/19/2020. 

As General Underground is already mobilized, has demonstrated to be cost effective and produce quality 

work, has established unit prices, and the subject projects have a short timeline, the following change 

orders have been implemented, or are being requested. 

On 7/7/2020 Council approved Change Order #1 (Cove Subdivision services replacement) in the amount 

of $60,245. 

On 12/8/2020 Council approved Change Order #2 (County Road 209 water / sewer extension) in the 

amount of $400,000.00 

On 3/16/2021 Council approved Change Order #3 in the amount of $119,950.00 for water main and 

sewer force main extension down Wilkes Point Road, and Change Order #4 for water main and sewer 

force main extension down County Road 315 to US 17 in the amount of $49,100.00. 

Staff completed the installation of the utilities on County Road 315 (Change order #4) and prepared a 

request to cancel Change order #4. 

Page 12

Item #5.



As the commencement of utility installation on Wilkes Point began, waterfront property owners at the 

end of the road requested to connect to water & sewer.  Staff obtained additional easement from the 

property owners and as the contractor was on-site, directional drilling the pipes it made sense to 

continue the installation of the additional 1300’ of pipe. 

On June 15, 2021, Council approved the cancellation of Change order #4, and approved increasing 

Change Order #3 to install the additional 1300’ of water & sewer down Wilkes Point Road and install 

water & sewer services to two vacant lots being developed. 

This staff report is for approval of Contractor’s Pay App #2 for CR 209 S and Contractor’s Pay App #1 

for Wilkes Point Road. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$247,783.75 as apportioned to the water & sewer CIP budgets. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Contractor’s Pay App #2 for CR 209 S in the amount of $140,481.25 and Contractor’s Pay 

App #1 for Wilkes Point Road in the amount of $107,302.50 to General Underground under Bid Award 

LC 2020-06 for a total amount of $1,631,644.00. 

Page 13

Item #5.



EJCDC
ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT

DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE Application 2

Period: 5/10 - 6/9/21

To: City of Green Cove Springs, Florida From:General Underground LLC

Project:CR 209 Water & Sewer Mn 
Extension

PO:007016

Approved Change  Orders 1.. ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE  $                                                                                                    379,573.50 

Number Additions 2.. Net Change  by Change Orders  $                                                                                                                  -   

3.. Current Contract Price (Line 1+2)  $                                                                                                    379,573.50 

4.. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE  $                                                                                                    247,398.50 

(Column F Total on Progress Estimates)

5.. RETAINGE

     A.. WORK COMPLETED 5%  $                                                                                                      12,369.93 

     B.. STORED MATERIALS  $                                                                                                                  -   

     C.. TOTAL RETAINAGE (Line 5.a+L5.b)  $                                                                                                      12,369.93 

6.. AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line4-Line5.c)  $                                                                                                    235,028.58 

TOTALS

NET CHANGE BY CHANGE ORDERS 8.. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION  $                                                                                                    140,481.25 

9.. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE  $                                                                                                    239,092.26 

Payment of:

Line 8 or other-attach explanation of the other amount

Payment of:

Line 8 or other-attach explanation of the other amount

Approved by:

Funding or Financing Entity (if applicable)                                   Date

City of Green Cove Springs, Florida                                              Date

BY:                                                                                              DATE:

Jason R. Shepler, P.E.  Mittauer & Associates, Inc                       Date

Is approved by:

Contractor's Certification
The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge, the following:

 (1)All previous progress payments received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract have been applied on account 
to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in connection with the Work covered by prior Applications for Payment;

 (2)Title to all Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work, or otherwise listed in or covered by this Application for 
Payment, will pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all Liens, security interests, and encumbrances (except such as are 

covered by a bond acceptable to Owner indemnifying Owner against any such Liens, security interest, or encumbrances); and
 (3)All the Work covered by this Application for Payment is in accordance with the Contract Documents and is not defective

     (Column G Total on Progress Estimates + Line 5.c above)

Contractor Signature Is recommended by:

 $                                                                                                      94,547.33 

Contractor's Application for Payment No. 2

Application Date:6/10/21

Deductions

7.. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (L6 from prior application)

Chris Brown 6/10/21

Page 14

Item #5.



TO OWNER: APPLICATION NO:1 Distribution to:

X OWNER

X ENGINEER

PERIOD TO:6/10/2021 X CONTRACTOR

FROM CONTRACTOR: VIA ENGINEER:

General Underground  

PO BOX 870

Chiefland , Fl 32644

CONTRACT FOR: CR 209 South

Item Description Qty Unit Price
QTY 

Installed
Total

Previous 
Qty

Total Total Qty Total

1 Mobilization 4% 1 LS 14,598.50$         -$                    1 14,598.50$   1 14,598.50$     
2 Preconstruction Video 1 LS 3,000.00$           -$                    1 3,000.00$     1 3,000.00$        
3 4" Connection to Exsisitng Main 1 LS 2,000.00$           -$                    0 -$               0 -$                  
4 12" Connection to Exsisitng Main 1 EA 5,000.00$           -$                    0 -$               0 -$                  
5 12" PVC 3500 LF 65.00$                 2275 147,875.00$     0 -$               2275 147,875.00$   
6 4" FPVC 3500 LF 25.00$                 -$                    3277 81,925.00$   3277 81,925.00$     
7 4" Gate Valve 2 EA 1,100.00$           -$                    0 -$               0 -$                  
8 12" GV 3 EA 3,500.00$           -$                    0 -$               0 -$                  
9 2" Blow off Assembly (FM) 1 EA 2,775.00$           -$                    0 -$               0 -$                  

10 Temporary Sample Tap 2 EA 1,000.00$           -$                    0 -$               0 -$                  
11 Sod Restoration 5000 Sqft 1.00$                   -$                    0 -$               0 -$                  
12 Dewatering 1 EA 7,500.00$           -$                    0 -$               0 -$                  
13 Asbuilts 1 Ea 10,000.00$         -$                    0 -$               0 -$                  

Total

Total Monthly Billings 147,875.00$     247,398.50$   

CONTRACT DATE: 1/9/21

PROJECT NUMBER: 2722719

Total Billings to Date

City of Green Cove Springs
PO: 2722719

CR 209 South

Page 15

Item #5.



EJCDC
ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT

DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE Application 1

Period: 5/10 - 6/9/21

To: City of Green Cove Springs, Florida From:General Underground LLC

Project:Water & Sewer Extension Wiles Pt 
Rd

PO:007308

Approved Change  Orders 1.. ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE  $                                                                                                    119,950.00 

Number Additions 2.. Net Change  by Change Orders  $                                                                                                                  -   

3.. Current Contract Price (Line 1+2)  $                                                                                                    119,950.00 

4.. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE  $                                                                                                    112,950.00 

(Column F Total on Progress Estimates)

5.. RETAINGE

     A.. WORK COMPLETED 5%  $                                                                                                        5,647.50 

     B.. STORED MATERIALS  $                                                                                                                  -   

     C.. TOTAL RETAINAGE (Line 5.a+L5.b)  $                                                                                                        5,647.50 

6.. AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line4-Line5.c)  $                                                                                                    107,302.50 

TOTALS

NET CHANGE BY CHANGE ORDERS 8.. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION  $                                                                                                    107,302.50 

9.. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE  $                                                                                                      12,647.50 

Payment of:

Line 8 or other-attach explanation of the other amount

Payment of:

Line 8 or other-attach explanation of the other amount

BY:                                                                                              DATE:

Engineer's Project No.: 8905-49-1

1

Application Date:6/10/21

Contractor's Application for Payment No.

Deductions

Contractor's Certification
The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge, the following:

 (1)All previous progress payments received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract have been applied on account 
to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in connection with the Work covered by prior Applications for Payment;

 (2)Title to all Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work, or otherwise listed in or covered by this Application for 
Payment, will pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all Liens, security interests, and encumbrances (except such as are 

covered by a bond acceptable to Owner indemnifying Owner against any such Liens, security interest, or encumbrances); and
 (3)All the Work covered by this Application for Payment is in accordance with the Contract Documents and is not defective

Contractor Signature

7.. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (L6 from prior application)

     (Column G Total on Progress Estimates + Line 5.c above)

City of Green Cove Springs, Florida                                              Date

Jason R. Shepler, P.E.  Mittauer & Associates, Inc                       Date

Is approved by:

Is recommended by:

 $                                                                                                                  -   

Approved by:

Funding or Financing Entity (if applicable)                                   Date

Chris Brown 6/10/21

Page 16

Item #5.



Item No. Item DESCRIPTION
Estimated 
Quanity

 Unit   Unit Price Total QTY Installed Total

1 Mobilization 1 LS 7,500.00$       7,500.00$                1 7,500.00$      

2 3" TAPPING SLEEVE and VALVE (WATER) 1 EA 3,500.00$       3,500.00$                1 3,500.00$      

3 3" TAPPING SLEEVE and VALVE (SEWER) 1 EA 3,500.00$       3,500.00$                1 3,500.00$      

4 3" Water Main 1,300 LF 27.50$             35,750.00$              1300 35,750.00$   

5 3" GATE VALVE ( Water) 1 EA 1,250.00$       1,250.00$                1 1,250.00$      

7 2" BLOW OFF ASSEMBLY MANUAL (WATER) 1 EA 3,000.00$       3,000.00$                1 3,000.00$      

8 3" FORCE MAIN 1300 LF 27.50$             35,750.00$              1300 35,750.00$   

9 3" GATE VALVE (Sewer) 1 EA 1,300.00$       1,300.00$                1 1,300.00$      

10 2" BLOW OFF ASSEMBLY MANUAL (SEWER) 1 EA 3,000.00$       3,000.00$                1 3,000.00$      

11 RESTORATION 1 LS 10,900.00$     10,900.00$              1 10,900.00$   

12 AS-BUILTS SURVEYOR 1 LS 7,000.00$       7,000.00$                -$                

13 DEMOBILIZATION 1 LS 7,500.00$       7,500.00$                1 7,500.00$      

TOTAL 119,950.00$            Total 112,950.00$    

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS
WILKES POINT ROAD

Page 17

Item #5.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director (Warehouse Manager) 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of an exemption through June 30, 2022 for warehouse management 

to the existing Purchasing Policies to purchase PVC conduit, PVC pipe, and other 

appurtenances, up to $50,000.00, with an e-mail approval process.  Scott Schultz 

 

BACKGROUND 

PVC materials (conduit and water / sewer pipe) are becoming extremely hard to purchase.  Lead times 

are extending from days to several weeks.  Many materials are not available.  Many vendor quotes are 

for 24 hours rather than the normal 30 days.  Many metal parts such as pipe repair materials needed to 

restore water or sewer flow are now on 12 week back-order. 

Warehouse staff have a long-standing relationship with several vendors.  Thanks to an efficient Finance 

Department and accounts payable process, the City is well ahead of most companies and municipalities 

as to payment cycle time.  For this reason, vendors will call us when materials are available, but they 

require immediate commitment.  Warehouse staff continues to shop around and search for the best value 

for our citizens funds, but there are times we need to act immediately. 

Staff is requesting authorization to circulate an e-mail to executive management (Finance Director, 

Assistant City Manager and City Manager) explaining conditions that would require immediate 

commitment to purchase materials up to $50,000.00.  Pending e-mail approval, staff will follow-up with 

a Council Staff Report for ratification of all such purchases.  This exception will expire on June 30, 

2022 unless extended by future Council action. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Cost will be determined by material, but up to $50,000.00.  Ability to immediately commit to certain 

purchases will allow staff to maintain essential services. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve an exemption, to expire on June 30, 2022, for warehouse management to the existing 

Purchasing Policies to purchase PVC conduit, PVC pipe, metal pipe and other appurtenances, up to 

$50,000.00, with an e-mail approval process. 

Page 18

Item #6.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, Disbursement 

Request #2 which includes Contractor’s Pay Request #1 for Williams Industrial Services, 

LLC, in the amount of $669,305.42 (already paid) and Mittauer & Associates Invoice # 

21240 in the amount of $6,000.00, for the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

(FDEP), State Revolving Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) 

Expansion, Phase 2, SRF Agreement No. WW1000420. 
 

BACKGROUND 

On June 7, 2016, Council provided direction for staff to pursue “Scenario #3” (See excerpt from the June 7th 
staff report) sewer system expansion/improvements.   
 
Excerpt from the June 7, 2016 Staff Report 
 
“At the October 20, 2015 meeting, Council authorized submittal of a loan application under the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) State Revolving Fund (SRF) program for the “Phase I” 
planning portion of the project which would be completed by Mittauer & Associates.  In addition, the Council 
approved a task order to Mittauer & Associates to prepare the planning documents necessary to secure 
capital financing under the SRF Program to complete a Facilities Plan, Environmental Plan, Capital 
Financing Plan, and associated Special Studies.”  
 
The staff report reviewed additional aspects of the analysis to date, and summarized three main 
development scenarios the City was considering.  They are outlined as follows: 
 
Scenario 1:      AWWTP only (no reclaimed water improvements) 
Scenario 2:      AWWTP and Reclaimed Water System Improvements 
Scenario 3:     AWWTP, Reclaimed Water System, and Existing Collection System Improvements 
 
As a result of the discussions and preliminary analysis, the City selected Scenario 3, which had the following 
implications: 
 
“Scenario 3 – AWWTP, reclaimed water system improvements and collection system improvements (repair 
and replacement of clay lines city-wide) 
 
                       Project Cost                            $35,181,000 
                       Loan Amount                          $28,681,000 
                       Retained Earnings                    $1,000,000 
                       Impact Fee Revenue                $1,200,000 
                       Grants                                       $4,300,000  
                       Annual Loan Payment              $1,316,100” 
 
The costs are planning-level values and the annual loan payment will be based on final bid prices, interest 

Page 19

Item #7.



rates at the time of construction loan acquisition, and accumulated grants/retained earnings/impact-fee 
revenue. Each scenario was reviewed with the following common variables: All scenarios assumed a 2% 
increase in the number of wastewater customers each year through FY’20 and a 0.5% increase each year 
from FY’21 through FY’25.All scenarios assumed $6,500,000 available in grant funding, retained earnings, 
and impact fee revenue dedicated to the project up front in order to reduce the total loan repayment 
amount.  Retained earnings is estimated at $1,000,000.  Impact fee revenue is estimated at 
$1,200,000.  Grant funding from all sources is estimated at $4,300,000.  Although, as indicated earlier in this 
writing, we may qualify for 45% grant funds from SRF, the total dollar amount available each year for grant 
funding is limited.  Staff feels that $4,300,000 is a reasonably conservative and prudent estimate as to the 
amount of grant dollars we may receive.  However, depending on the number of projects funded by the SRF 
program in the next two years and the amount of grant funding available, that number can certainly increase. 
All scenarios assume a 2.2%, 30-year loan repayment which is in line with the Capital Financing Plan 
formulas.  However, based on recent interest rate history in the SRF program and use of interest rate buy-
downs such as requiring Davis-Bacon wage requirements and Buy-American provisions of the contractor, 
we may be able to realize lower interest rates when our loan is actually processed.  The 30-year loan 
timeline contemplates repayments from FY’21 through FY’50.Reynolds Park re-development is not factored 
in to any of the scenarios. 
 
On August 10, 2016, SRF staff approved SRF Project # 100400 granting the City of Green Cove Springs a 
$2,261,200.00 loan with a principal forgiveness amount of $1,491,035.00 to address the project’s design, 
permitting, and SSES needs.  These tasks were completed and the project has been completed / closed. 
 
On October 18, 2016, the City Council adopted after second and final reading, Ordinance O-13-2016, 
authorizing the expenditures of up to $34,158,100.00 for capital improvements to the City's wastewater 
treatment, wastewater collection and reclaimed water systems 
 
On August 8, 2018, FDER SRF staff approved SRF Project # 100400 granting the City of Green Cove 
Springs a $6,120,600.00 loan with a principal forgiveness amount of $4,063,425.00 for Phase I Construction 
which includes reclaimed water, electrical and improvements to Lift Stations #2 and #4. 
 
On October 2, 2018 Council approved Resolution No. R-29-2018, a Resolution authorizing staff to submit 
and mayor to execute a loan application to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) 
State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program for Phase I Construction of the Consolidated Advanced 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) and associated Lift Station Improvements. 
 
On December 4, 2018, council approved and authorized the execution of the contract  for SRF Project # 
100400 granting the City of Green Cove Springs a $6,120,600.00 loan with a principal forgiveness amount 
of $4,063,425.00 for Phase I Construction which includes reclaimed water, electrical and improvements to 
Lift Stations #2 and #4. 
 
On March 19, 2019, Council approved bid tabulations and awarded Sawcross the plant portion, and R2T the 
lift station portion, of the Phase I construction. 
 
Phase I construction being completed in May of 2020, Council authorized staff to submit a Request for 
Inclusion (RFI) to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) State Revolving Fund (SRF) 
for Construction Phase II, which includes construction of a 1.25 million gallon per day (MGD) - annual 
average daily flow (AADF), advanced wastewater treatment facility (AWWTF), in the amount of 
$18,165,500.00. 
 
On August 12, 2020, the FDEP SRF program awarded the City a $12,000,000.00, 20 year loan, with 
$4,452,835.00 in principal forgiveness (grant).  Due to a limitation of available funds, the SRF program 
withheld $6,186,500.00 in requested funds, which will be reviewed for award and addition to the current loan 
the next award period. 

On 10/6/2020 City Council approved Resolution No. R-27-2020, a Resolution authorizing staff to submit and 
Mayor to execute the loan application for SRF Loan # 100401 to the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (FDEP) State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program for Phase II Construction of the Consolidated 

Page 20

Item #7.



Advanced Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) in the amount of $12,000,000.00 with a principal 
forgiveness (grant) amount of $4,452,835.00 providing for an actual repayment amount of $7,547,165.00. 

On 1/19/2021 the City Council approved of, and authorized the Mayor, City Attorney and City Clerk to  
execute, the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF), Construction Loan Agreement WW100420, Grant 
Agreement SG 100421 for Phase II Construction of the Consolidated Advanced Wastewater Treatment 
Plant (AWWTP) in the amount of $12,000,000.00 with a principal forgiveness (grant) amount of 
$4,452,835.00 providing for an actual repayment amount of $7,547,165.00.  The original loan request was 
for $18,106,500.00.  Due to limited funds, the SRF program limited the award to $12,000,000.00, with the 
plan to award the city an additional $6,106,500.00 in July 2021. 

On February 2, 2021, eight Sealed Bids were opened for the construction of the above referenced project.  
Williams Industrial was determined to be the lowest qualified bidder.  The estimated budget / original SRF 
loan request was for $18,106,500.00.  This project came in under projected budget, including the Additive 
Alternates.  

On 2/10/2021 Council approved the Engineer’s Recommendation of Award to Williams Industrial Services, 
LLC, in the amount of $15,426,644.33, for the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), 
State Revolving Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, SRF 
Agreement No. WW1000420. 
 
On May 18, 2021, Council approved Disbursement Request #1 in the amount of $35,000.00. 
 
On June 15, 2021, Council approved Contractor’s Pay Request #1 for Williams Industrial in the amount of 

$669,305.42 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$675,305.42 from the Wastewater CIP Budget 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve of, and authorize the Mayor to execute, Disbursement Request #2 which includes Contractor’s 

Pay Request #1 for Williams Industrial Services, LLC, in the amount of $669,305.42 (already paid) and 

Mittauer & Associates Invoice # 21240 in the amount of $6,000.00, for the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection (FDEP), State Revolving Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation 

Facility (WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, SRF Agreement No. WW1000420. 

Page 21

Item #7.



    

  

      

       

 
                 

   

    

   

  

  

           

  

  

   

 

 

Disbursement Request Package
State Revolving Fund Programs 

1. Project Sponsor

2. Project Number

3. Disbursement Request Number

4. Invoice Period

5. Type of Request: Partial Final 

6. Federal Employer Identification Number

7. Mail EFT Send Remittance to: 

(This must match an address setup in MyFloridaMarketPlace.com as the Vendor address). 

Disbursement Details 
(Rounded to the nearest dollar) 

1. Planning and Specialized Studies (attach invoices)

2. Design (attach invoices)

3. Construction and Demolition (attach pay estimates)

4. Technical Services during Construction (attach invoices)

5. Other (must be specified in agreement)

6. 

7. Total cumulative to date

8.. Disbursements previously requested 

9. Amount requested for disbursement

Amount This Request Total Cumulative 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ 

$( ) 

$ $ 

(Total of lines 1 through 6) (Line 7 minus Line 8) 

** SUBMIT ONE ORIGINAL COPY OF THIS FORM AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION TO: ** 

SRF_Reporting@dep.state.fl.us 

Page 1 of 4 

City of Green Cove Springs, Florida

WW100420/SG100421

2

5/1/2021 through 6/6/2021

59-6000328

Wells Fargo Bank N.A. Account#: 2000007820388 | ABA#: 121000248

Account Name: City of Green Cove Springs Utility Fund Savings

City Address:  321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, FL  32043

  

  

                      669,305.42           669,305.42

                          6,000.00              41,000.00

          710,305.42

                     675,305.42
           675,305.42

          35,000.00

x

Page 22

Item #7.

mailto:SRF_Reporting@dep.state.fl.us
http:MyFloridaMarketPlace.com


 

  

 

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

   

 

  
 

  
 

 

  

 

 

 

  Project Number _______________________ 

Disbursement Number _______________ 

Authorized Representative’s Certification
of Disbursement Request and Davis-Bacon Certification 

I, , 

(name of Authorized Representative designated in the agreement) 

on behalf of , do hereby certify that: 

(name of Project Sponsor) 

1. The disbursement amount requested on page 1 of this form is for allowable costs for the project
described in the agreement.

2. Materials, labor, equipment, and/or services representing costs included in the amount requested
have been satisfactorily purchased, performed or received, and applied toward completing the project;
such costs are documented by invoices or other appropriate documentation which are filed in the
Project Sponsor’s permanent records.

3. The Project Sponsor is required to pay such costs under the terms and provisions of contracts relating
directly to the project, and the Project Sponsor is not in default of any terms or provisions of the
contracts.

4. All funds received to date have been applied toward completing the project.

5. All permits and approvals required for the construction which is underway have been obtained.

6. If applicable for construction projects, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the above
referenced project complies with Davis-Bacon and Related Acts such that all of the laborers and
mechanics employed by contractors and subcontractors during the referenced period on the
contractors pay applications submitted with this disbursement request were paid wages at rates not
less than those listed on the prevailing wage rate contained in the contract documents and that all
applicable provisions of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts have been met.

I also certify that interviews and periodic reviews of a representative sample of the weekly payroll data
have been performed to verify that contractors and subcontractors are paying the appropriate wage
rate.

I understand that falsifying information on this certification may be grounds for termination of the SRF
loan agreement.

( Signature of Authorized Representative) 

(Title) 

(Date) 

Page 2 of 4 

Period of Certification: 

5/1/21 through 6/6/21 

DEP Agreement No. WW100420/SG100421

Edward Gaw, Mayor

City of Green Cove Springs, Florida

Mayor

July 6, 2021

WW100420
2

Page 23

Item #7.



Page 24

Item #7.



MITTAUER & 
ASSOCIATES, INC.
580-1 WELLS ROAD
ORANGE PARK, FL  32073

904-278-0030

Invoice  21240

BILL TO

City of Green Cove Springs
321 Walnut Street
Green Cove Springs, FL  
32043
Attn: Mike Null

DATE
06/01/2021

PLEASE PAY
$6,000.00

DUE DATE
06/21/2021

M&A PROJECT NO.
8905-56-1

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

DEP SRF HARBOR ROAD WWTF EXPANSION, PHASE 2
BIDDING & CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 
DEP AGREEMENT NO. WW100420/SG100421 
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA
P.O. NO.  2723070

Engineering services concerning the DEP SRF Harbor Road WWTF Expansion, Phase 2, 
Construction Administration project including FDEP SRF and SJRWMD coordination, attendance 
at construction conferences, shop drawing review, City coordination, RFI responses, vendor 
coordination, and contactor correspondence during the period ending May 28, 2021.

LUMP SUM CONTRACT AMOUNT:  $696,500.00
     Item A.  Administration Services, $20,000
     Item B.  Construction Bidding Services, $8,500
     Item C.  Construction Administration, $287,500
     Item D.  SRF Monitoring Requirements (Davis-Bacon & American Iron-Steel Monitoring), 
$114,500
     Item E.  Resident Project Representative Services, $233,500
     Item F.  Start-up Services & Operation/Maintenance Manual, $32,500

AMOUNT PREVIOUSLY INVOICED:  $35,000.00

Amount Earned This Period 6,000.00

TOTAL DUE $6,000.00

Thank you for your business.

THANK YOU.

Page 25

Item #7.



Page 26

Item #7.



Page 27

Item #7.



Page 28

Item #7.



Page 29

Item #7.



Page 30

Item #7.



Page 31

Item #7.



Page 32

Item #7.



Page 33

Item #7.



Page 34

Item #7.



Page 35

Item #7.



Page 36

Item #7.



Page 37

Item #7.



Page 38

Item #7.



Page 39

Item #7.



Page 40

Item #7.



Page 41

Item #7.



Page 42

Item #7.



Page 43

Item #7.



Page 44

Item #7.



Sponsor Name: 2
DEP Agreement No.:

Vendor  Name Invoice Number  Invoice Date Invoice Amount Local Share or Other Funding 
or Amount Not Requested Requested Amount Check Number Category (ie. construction, technical 

services)
Mittauer & Associates, Inc. 21240 6/1/2021 6,000.00$                        -$                                          6,000.00$                     Technical Services
Williams Industrial Services ,LLC 1 6/6/2021 669,305.42$                    -$                                          669,305.42$                 Construction 

-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             
-$                                          -$                             

Totals: 675,305.42$             -$                                 675,305.42$                 

WW100420/SG100421

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

REIMBURSEMENT SUMMARY

City of Green Cove Springs, Florida Payment Request No.:

Page 45

Item #7.



Summary of Work 
DEP SRF Harbor Road WWTF Expansion, Phase 2 

Bidding & Construction Phase 
DEP Agreement No. WW100420/SG100421 

City of Green Cove Springs, FL 
M&A Project Nos. 8905-56-1 

July 6, 2021 
 
 
Summary of work for Green Cove Springs Disbursement Request No. 2 to accompany the 
Contractor’s Application for Payment No. 1 and Mittauer & Associates Invoice No. 21240, consist 
of:  
 
Construction services included bonds, Builders Risk Insurance, mobilization, sitework and yard 
piping as well as aerators and mooring arms for the aerobic digesters. Overall, construction 
services are 4.34% complete.  
 
 
Technical services during construction included FDEP SRF and SJRWMD coordination, attendance 
at construction conferences, shop drawing review, City coordination, RFI responses, vendor 
coordination, and contractor correspondence.  Overall, technical services during construction are 
5.89% complete.  
 
 
 

Page 46

Item #7.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Erin West, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Resolution No. R-13-2021, a resolution authorizing a new FDOT 

State Highway System Lighting, Maintenance, and Compensation Agreement. Contract 

No. TBD, for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2028 in the amount of $36,164.70 

and authorizing the City Manager to execute said Agreement.  Mike Null 
 

BACKGROUND 

In 2003, the FDOT started a program to compensate all local maintaining agencies for their costs 

associated with the operation and maintenance of traffic signal systems located on state-owned 

roadways. The City received $4,780 for FY 02/03. The City received 

$27,956.88 for FY 15/16, $28,794.66 for FY 16/17, $29,657.88 for FY 17/18, $30,549.96 for 

FY 18/19, $34,089.12 for FY 19/20, and $35,111.70 for FY 20/21. The amount is programmed to 

increase by 3% annually unless or until the Agreement is amended. The attached agreement for FY 

21/22 is for the amount of $36,164.70. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funds are deposited to A/R Account No. 001-3439100 

RECOMMENDATION 

City Council approval of Resolution No. R-13-2021, a resolution authorizing a new FDOT State 

Highway System Lighting, Maintenance, and Compensation Agreement. Contract No. TBD, for the 

period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2028 in the amount of $36,164.70 and authorizing the City 

Manager to execute said Agreement. 
 

Page 47

Item #8.



Florida Department of Transportation
RON DESANTIS 

GOVERNOR 
District Maintenance Contracts Office 
1109 South Marion Avenue, MS 2010 

Lake City, Florida 32055

KEVIN J. THIBAULT, P.E. 
SECRETARY 

Improve Safety, Enhance Mobility, Inspire Innovation 
www.fdot.gov

April 14, 2021 

City of Green Cove Springs 
321 Walnut Street 
Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

New Contract No:              TBD 
Old Contract No.                AN491 
Financial Project No.         41441617802 
Description:                        State Highway Lighting, Maintenance and Compensation Agreement 
Contract Period                  July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2028 

Agency Partner, 

Attached is the new Highway Lighting, Maintenance, and Compensation Agreement. It has been updated and 
improved to provide more flexibility in the prosecution and progress of the work. Once executed it will supersede 
the existing agreement (Item 7 c.). 

Some of the changes include: 

 The term of this agreement has been adjusted to be seven years. (Item 1 Section E); the existing 
agreement is essentially open-ended with automatic renewals. 

 This new version authorizes your Agency to submit reimbursement claims to all third parties responsible 
for the damage; this allows you to pursue recovery from insurance agencies and individuals responsible 
for damage to the highway lighting system (Item 2).  

 The current Agreement does not provide for an opt-out option. This new version allows either party to 
terminate the Agreement by a written notice. (Item 1 Section E). 

 Prior to the beginning of each agreement year, it requires the Maintaining Agency to submit an amended 
Exhibit A to account for any new lights that have come on-line. (Item 2) 

 Exhibit A was updated to better clarify the features covered and compensation amount. 

Attached, for comparison, is the current agreement information and the new agreement language and exhibits. 
Please fill out and sign the agreement, complete the spreadsheet, and return to my attention no later than May 
31, 2021. This will give us time to execute the new agreements prior to the expiration of the existing agreement 
year. 

Please attach the appropriate documentation for signature authority or a resolution for the individual
executing the agreement.

Page 48

Item #8.



The total payment amount for each Fiscal Year is calculated by inputting the actual number of qualifying types of 
lights and multiplying by the Unit Rate and 90%.  Example:  330 (lights) x $291.26 x 0.90 (90% Requirement) = 
$86,533.92   

Should you not wish to execute the new agreement please let us know and we shall continue to operate under 
the terms of the original agreement.  

If you have any questions, please see the contact information below. 

Sincerely, 

_____________________ _______________________ 
Sandra Brink   Lisa Butler 
District 2 Maintenance Contracts District 2 Maintenance Contracts 
sandra.brink@dot.state.fl.us lisa.butler@dot.state.fl.us
(386)961-7585  (386)961-7382 

Page 49

Item #8.

mailto:sandra.brink@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:lisa.butler@dot.state.fl.us


STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

STATE HIGHWAY LIGHTING, MAINTENANCE, AND 
COMPENSATION AGREEMENT

375-020-52 
MAINTENANCE 

OGC – 02/21 
Page 1 of 8 

CONTRACT NO.
FINANCIAL PROJECT NO. 41441617802 

F.E.I.D. NO. F59-6000328-001 

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this day of      , year of      , by and between the STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, hereinafter referred to as "FDOT”,  and City of Green Cove Springs, hereinafter 
referred to as the "MAINTAINING AGENCY"; 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, FDOT is authorized under Sections 334.044 and 335.055, Florida Statutes, to enter into this 
Agreement, and the MAINTAINING AGENCY has the authority to enter into this Agreement and to undertake the 
maintenance and operation of lighting on the State Highway System; and 

WHEREAS, the MAINTAINING AGENCY has authorized its undersigned officers to enter into and execute this 
Agreement; 

WHEREAS, FDOT has identified sites where lighting and/or lighting systems, hereinafter referred to as “Facilities”,
are located on the State Highway System within the jurisdictional boundaries of the MAINTAINING AGENCY. A list of the 
Facilities is included as Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

WHEREAS, the MAINTAINING AGENCY agrees to maintain the Facilities as further set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained herein, FDOT and the 
MAINTAINING AGENCY hereby agree as follows: 

1. Maintenance of Facilities 

a. The MAINTAINING AGENCY shall maintain the Facilities listed in Exhibit A. The Facilities may include 
lighting for roadways, as well as park and ride, pedestrian overpasses, and recreational areas owned by or 
located on the property of FDOT. The Facilities shall not include lighting located in weigh stations, rest 
areas, or on Interstate highways. 

The location and type of lighting to be maintained pursuant to this Agreement is set forth in Exhibit A. Any 
changes or modifications to Exhibit A must be in writing and signed by both FDOT and the MAINTAINING 
AGENCY. Any Facilities added to Exhibit A during the FDOT’s fiscal year shall be maintained and operated 
by the MAINTAINING AGENCY upon the FDOT’s final acceptance of installation of any new lighting and/or 
lighting systems. Prior to the start of each new fiscal year, the MAINTAINING AGENCY and FDOT shall 
amend Exhibit A to reflect any changes to the Facilities, including addition, removal, or change in lighting 
type maintained pursuant to this Agreement.  

The MAINTAINING AGENCY will be compensated for Facilities added to Exhibit A by amendment of this 
Agreement in the FDOT’s fiscal year occurring after the lighting and/or lighting systems are installed and 
final acceptance of such installation is given by FDOT. In the event that no change is made to the previous 
year’s Exhibit A, a certification from the MAINTAINING AGENCY shall be provided to FDOT certifying that 
no change has been made to Exhibit A during FDOT’s previous fiscal year.  Unless stated otherwise, all 
references to fiscal years within this agreement refer to FDOT’s fiscal year, beginning July 1st and ending 
June 30th. 

b. In maintaining the Facilities, the MAINTAINING AGENCY shall perform all activities necessary to keep the 
Facilities fully operating, properly functioning, with a minimum of 90% of the lights burning for any lighting 
type (e.g., high mast, standard, underdeck, and sign) or roadway system at all times in accordance with the 
original design thereof, whether necessitated by normal wear and tear, accidental or intentional damage, 
or acts of nature.  Required maintenance includes, but is not limited to, providing electrical power and 
paying all charges associated therewith, routine inspection and testing, preventative maintenance, 
emergency maintenance, replacement of any component parts of the Facilities (including the poles and any 
and all other component parts installed as part of the Facilities), and locating (both vertically and 
horizontally) the Facilities.  All repairs or replacement will be in kind unless a variance is approved in writing 
by FDOT.  

Page 50

Item #8.



375-020-52 
MAINTENANCE 

OGC – 02/21 
Page 2 of 8 

c. All maintenance must be in accordance with the provisions of the following: 

(1) Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices; and 

(2) All other applicable local, state, or federal laws, rules, resolutions, or ordinances, and FDOT
procedures. 

d. For lighting installed as part of a FDOT project, the MAINTAINING AGENCY’s obligation to maintain the 
Facility commences upon the MAINTAINING AGENCY’s receipt of notification from FDOT that FDOT has 
formally accepted the project, except for the obligation to provide for electrical power, which obligation to 
provide for electrical power commences at such time as the lighting system is ready to be energized; 
provided, however, that the MAINTAINING AGENCY is not required to perform any activities which are the 
responsibilities of FDOT’s contractor.

Prior to acceptance by FDOT, the MAINTAINING AGENCY shall have the opportunity to inspect and 
request modifications/corrections to the installation(s). FDOT agrees to make modifications/corrections 
prior to acceptance so long as the modifications/corrections comply with the installation contract documents 
and specifications.  

e. The term for this Agreement is seven (7) years. Either party may terminate this Agreement by a notice of 
termination. The notice of termination must be in writing. Should the MAINTAINING AGENCY choose to 
terminate the Agreement, the MAINTAINING AGENCY  shall provide a minimum notice period of two (2) 
fiscal years prior to the effective date of termination and the notice shall be endorsed by the elected body 
(County Commission, City Council, or local agency governing body) under which the Agency operates. The 
effective date of the termination will coincide with the end of the FDOT’s fiscal year of June 30th following 
the two-year notice. 

The termination of this Agreement will not terminate maintenance responsibilities for lighting owned by the 
MAINTAINING AGENCY. Maintenance obligations for lights owned by the MAINTAINING AGENCY will 
remain the responsibility of the MAINTAINING AGENCY. Nor does termination of this Agreement operate 
to relieve the MAINTAINING AGENCY of any maintenance obligations contained in other agreements. 
Maintenance of lights governed by a separate maintenance agreement will continue per the terms of that 
separate maintenance agreement. 

2. Compensation and Payment

FDOT shall pay to the MAINTAINING AGENCY a sum of $ 36,164.70  for the 
fiscal year in which this Agreement is signed.  Payments will be calculated and made in accordance with Exhibit A.  

Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the MAINTAINING AGENCY shall submit an amended Exhibit A or a 
certification of no change to Exhibit A and FDOT and the MAINTAINING AGENCY shall agree on the amount and 
percentage of lighting to be paid for the coming fiscal year.  FDOT will issue a work order confirming the amount 
and authorizing the performance of maintenance for each new fiscal year.  The work order must be an FDOT-signed 
letter of authorization to the MAINTAINING AGENCY with a subject line containing the terms "State Highway 
Lighting, Maintenance, and Compensation Agreement work order".  The work order must reflect the contract 
number, financial project number, FEID No. of the MAINTAINING AGENCY, the fiscal year, the percentage of 
lighting funded and the lump sum amount to be paid for the fiscal year indicated.  The work order must be signed 
by the MAINTAINING AGENCY and returned to FDOT.  Failure by the MAINTAINING AGENCY to take any of the 
actions required by this paragraph may result in nonpayment by FDOT.  

FDOT expressly assigns its rights, interests and privileges pertaining to damage to Facilities caused by third parties 
to the MAINTAINING AGENCY, so they may pursue all claims and causes of actions against the third 
parties responsible for the damage.  FDOT will assist the MAINTAINING AGENCY and will confirm the 
MAINTAINING AGENCY’s authorization to pursue recovery. The MAINTAINING AGENCY will be responsible for 
all attorneys’ fees and litigation costs incurred in its recovery activities. 

Page 51

Item #8.



375-020-52 
MAINTENANCE 

OGC – 02/21 
Page 3 of 8 

3. Record Keeping 

The MAINTAINING AGENCY shall keep records of all activities and report all maintenance performed and 
replacement components and parts installed pursuant to this Agreement.  The records shall be kept in an electronic 
format approved by FDOT.  

Records shall be maintained and made available upon request to FDOT during the period of this Agreement and 
for three (3) years after final payment for the work pursuant to this Agreement is made.  Copies of these documents 
and records will be furnished to FDOT upon request. 

4. Invoicing  

The MAINTAINING AGENCY shall invoice FDOT annually in a format acceptable to the FDOT.  Invoices must be 
submitted no earlier than May 1 and no later than June 15 of the fiscal year in which the services were provided in 
order to be processed for payment by June 30. 

Upon receipt, FDOT has five (5) working days to inspect and approve the goods and services.  FDOT has twenty 
(20) days to deliver a request for payment (voucher) to the Department of Financial Services.  The twenty (20) days 
are measured from the latter of the date the invoice is received or the goods or services are received, inspected, 
and approved. 

If a payment is not available within forty (40) days, a separate interest penalty at a rate as established pursuant to 
Section 215.422, Florida Statutes, will be due and payable, in addition to the invoice amount, to the MAINTAINING 
AGENCY.  Interest penalties of less than one (1) dollar will not be enforced unless the MAINTAINING AGENCY
requests payment.  Invoices returned to a MAINTAINING AGENCY because of MAINTAINING AGENCY
preparation errors will result in a delay in the payment.  The invoice payment requirements do not start until a 
properly completed invoice is provided to FDOT. 

A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within the Department of Financial Services.  The duties of this 
individual include acting as an advocate for contractors/vendors who may be experiencing problems in obtaining 
timely payment(s) from a state agency.  The Vendor Ombudsman may be contacted at (850) 410-9724 or by calling 
the Chief Financial Officer’s Hotline, 1-800-848-3792. 

The State of Florida’s performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon an annual 
appropriation by the Legislature.  In the event this Agreement is in excess of $25,000 and has a term for a period 
of more than one (1) year, the provisions of Section 339.135(6)(a), Florida Statutes, are hereby incorporated: 

FDOT, during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur any liability, or enter into any contract which, by its 
terms, involves the expenditure of money in excess of the amounts budgeted as available for expenditure during 
such fiscal year.  Any contract, verbal or written, made in violation of this subsection shall be null and void, and no 
money may be paid on such contract.  FDOT shall require a statement from the Comptroller of FDOT that funds 
are available prior to entering into any such contract or other binding commitment of funds.  Nothing herein 
contained shall prevent the making of contracts for periods exceeding 1 year, but any contract so made shall be 
executory only for the value of the services to be rendered or agreed to be paid for in succeeding fiscal years; and 
this paragraph shall be incorporated verbatim in all contracts of FDOT which are for an amount in excess of $25,000 
and which have a term for a period of more than 1 year. 

5. Default

In the event that the MAINTAINING AGENCY breaches any provision of this Agreement, then in addition to any 
other remedies which are otherwise provided for in this Agreement, FDOT may exercise one or more of the following 
options, provided that at no time may FDOT be entitled to receive double recovery of damages: 

a. Pursue a claim for damages suffered by FDOT or the public. 

b. Pursue any other remedies legally available. 

c. As to any work not performed by the MAINTAINING AGENCY, perform such work with its own forces or 
through contractors and seek reimbursement for the cost thereof from the MAINTAINING AGENCY if the
MAINTAINING AGENCY fails to cure the non-performance within fourteen (14) days after written notice 
from FDOT of the non-performance; provided, however, that advance notice and cure will not be 
preconditions in the event of an emergency. 

Page 52

Item #8.



375-020-52 
MAINTENANCE 

OGC – 02/21 
Page 4 of 8 

6. Force Majeure

Neither the MAINTAINING AGENCY nor FDOT will be liable to the other for any failure to perform under this 
Agreement to the extent such performance is prevented by an act of God, war, riots, natural catastrophe, or other 
event beyond the control of the non-performing party and which could not have been avoided or overcome by the 
exercise of due diligence; provided that the party claiming the excuse from performance has (a) promptly notified 
the other party of the occurrence and its estimated duration, (b) promptly remedied or mitigated the effect of the 
occurrence to the extent possible, and (c) resumed performance as soon as possible. 

7. Miscellaneous 

a. FDOT shall consider the employment by any contractor of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 
274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act.  If the contractor knowingly employs unauthorized aliens, 
such violation will be cause for unilateral cancellation of this Agreement. 

b. The MAINTAINING AGENCY shall allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or other material 
subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or received by the MAINTAINING 
AGENCY in conjunction with this Agreement.  Failure by the MAINTAINING AGENCY to grant such public 
access will be grounds for immediate unilateral cancellation of this Agreement by FDOT. 

c. This Agreement constitutes the complete and final expression of the parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, or negotiations with respect thereto. 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, this Agreement shall replace and supersede all prior 
agreements between FDOT and the MAINTAINING AGENCY with respect to maintenance of the lighting 
and/or lighting systems for the Facilities identified in Exhibit A.  

d. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Any provision hereof found to be unlawful 
or unenforceable are severable and will not affect the validity of the remaining provisions hereof.  

e. All notices required pursuant to the terms hereof may be sent by first class United States Mail, facsimile 
transmission, hand delivery, electronic mail, or express mail and will be deemed to have been received by 
the end of five (5) business days from the proper sending thereof unless proof of prior actual receipt is 
provided.  The MAINTAINING AGENCY must notify the local District of FDOT of the appropriate persons 
for notices to be sent pursuant to this Agreement.  Unless otherwise notified in writing, notices must be sent 
to the following addresses: 

MAINTAINING AGENCY: 

City of Green Cove Springs 
Steve Kennedy, City Manager 
321 Walnut Street 
Green Cove Springs 32043 

FDOT: 

Florida Department of Transportation 
District Maintenance Contracts, MS- 2010 
1109 South Marion Avenue 
Lake City, Florida 32055 

f. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME INFORMATION STATEMENT: A person or affiliate who has been placed on the 
convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to 
provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for 
the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property 
to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant 
under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of 
the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 
thirty six (36) months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 

g. An entity or affiliate who has been placed on the discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid on a 
contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public 
entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real 
property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or 
consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity. 

Page 53

Item #8.



375-020-52 
MAINTENANCE 

OGC – 02/21 
Page 5 of 8 

h. By signing this agreement the Maintaining Agency certifies that it is not: (1) listed on the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List, created pursuant to Section 215.4725, F.S., (2) engaged in a boycott 
of Israel, (3) or listed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to Section 215.473, 
Florida Statutes. For contracts involving $1,000,000 or more, if the Department determines the Maintaining 
Agency submitted a false certification under Section 287.135(5) of the Florida Statutes regarding the 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran 
Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to Section 215.473, Florida Statutes, or for contracts 
involving any amount, if the Maintaining Agency has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies that 
Boycott Israel List, or is engaged in a boycott of Israel, the Department shall either terminate the Contract 
after it has given the Maintaining Agency notice and an opportunity to demonstrate the Department’s 
determination of false certification was in error pursuant to Section 287.135(5)(a) of the Florida Statutes, or 
maintain the Contract if the conditions of Section 287.135(4) of the Florida Statutes are met. 

i. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of either party’s sovereign immunity. 

j. MAINTAINING AGENCY: 

1. shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment 
eligibility of all new employees hired by the MAINTAINING AGENCY during the term of the 
contract; and 

2. shall expressly require any subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant to the 
state contract to likewise utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to 
verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the contract 
term. 

3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the 
Agreement term and following completion of the Agreement if the Maintaining Agency does not 
transfer the records to FDOT

4. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to FDOT, all public records in possession 
of the Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by FDOT to perform the service. If 
the Consultant transfers all public records to FDOT upon completion of the Agreement, the 
Consultant shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements. If the Consultant keeps and maintains public records 
upon completion of the Agreement, the Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for 
retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to FDOT, upon request 
from FDOT’s custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information 
technology systems of FDOT

5. Failure by the Maintaining Agency  to comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, shall be grounds 
for immediate unilateral cancellation of this Agreement by FDOT

Page 54

Item #8.



375-020-52 
MAINTENANCE 

OGC – 02/21 
Page 6 of 8 

IF THE MAINTAINING AGENCY HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, 
FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE MAINTAINING AGENCY’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT:  

District 1 
863-519-2623 
D1prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
Florida Department of Transportation 
District 1 – Office of General Counsel 
801 N. Broadway 
Bartow, FL 33830 

District 2 
386-758-3727 
D2prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
Florida Department of Transportation  
District 2 - Office of General Counsel 
1109 South Marion Avenue, MS 2009 
Lake City, FL 32025 

District 3 
850-330-1391 
D3prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
Florida Department of Transportation  
District 3 - Office of General Counsel 
1074 Highway 90 East 
Chipley, FL 32428 

District 4 
954-777-4529 
D4prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
Florida Department of Transportation  
District 4 – Office of General Counsel 
3400 West Commercial Blvd. 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309 

District 5 
386-943-5000 
D5prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
Florida Department of Transportation  
District 5 – Office of General Counsel 
719 South Woodland Boulevard 
Deland, FL 32720 

District 6 
305-470-5453 
D6prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
Florida Department of Transportation  
District 6 – Office of General Counsel 
1000 NW 111 Avenue 
Miami, FL 33172-5800 

District 7 
813-975-6491 
D7prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
Florida Department of Transportation  
District 7 - Office of General Counsel 
11201 N. McKinley Drive, MS 7-120 
Tampa, FL 33612 

Florida’s Turnpike Enterprise 
407-264-3170 
TPprcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
Turnpike Enterprise Chief Counsel 
Florida Turnpike – Office of General 
Counsel 
Turnpike Mile Post 263, Bldg. 5315 
Ocoee, FL 34761 

Central Office 
850-414-5355 
COprcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
Office of the General Counsel 
Florida Department of Transportation 
605 Suwannee Street, MS 58 
Tallahassee, Florida  32399-0458 

Page 55

Item #8.

mailto:D1prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:D2prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:D3prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:D4prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:D5prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:D6prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:D7prcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:TPprcustodian@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:COprcustodian@dot.state.fl.us


STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

STATE HIGHWAY LIGHTING, MAINTENANCE, AND 
COMPENSATION AGREEMENT

375-020-52 
MAINTENANCE 

OGC – 02/21 
Page 7 of 8 

8. Certification

This document is a printout of an FDOT form maintained in an electronic format and all revisions thereto by the 
MAINTAINING AGENCY in the form of additions, deletions, or substitutions are reflected only in an Appendix 
entitled “Changes to Form Document” and no change is made in the text of the document itself.  Hand notations on 
affected portions of this document may refer to changes reflected in the above-named Appendix but are for 
reference purposes only and do not change the terms of the document.  By signing this document, the 
MAINTAINING AGENCY hereby represents that no change has been made to the text of this document except 
through the terms of the Appendix entitled “Changes to Form Document."

You MUST signify by selecting one of the applicable options:

No changes have been made to this Forms Document and no Appendix entitled "Changes to Form 
Document" is attached. 

No changes have been made to this Form Document, but changes are included on the attached Appendix 
entitled "Changes to Form Document." 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement effective the day and year first written. 

MAINTAINING AGENCY 

BY:  (Signature) 

(Printed Name: Steve Kennedy ) 

(Printed Title: City Manager ) 

Date:       

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

BY:  (Signature) 

(Printed Name: Travis Humphries, P.E. ) 
Date:       

(Printed Title: D2 Director of Operations ) 

FDOT Legal Review

BY:   (Signature) 
Counsel 

Date:       

(Printed Name: Melissa Blackwell ) 

Page 56

Item #8.



375-020-52 
MAINTENANCE 

OGC – 02/21 
Page 8 of 8 

Exhibit A 
STATE HIGHWAY LIGHTING, MAINTENANCE, AND COMPENSATION AGREEMENT 

For Fiscal Year 21/22 

1.0 PURPOSE 

This exhibit defines the method and limits of compensation to be made to the MAINTAINING AGENCY for the 
services described in this Agreement and method by which payments will be made. 

2.0 FACILITIES 

The lighting or lighting systems listed below, or in an attached spreadsheet, or other electronic form are included 
with this Agreement and represent the Facilities to be maintained by the MAINTAINING AGENCY: 

1.  See Attached Lighting Inventory Sheet 

2.        

3.        

4.        

5.        

6.        

3.0 COMPENSATION 

For the satisfactory completion of all services detailed in this Agreement, FDOT will pay the MAINTAINING 
AGENCY the Total Sum as provided in Section 2 of the Agreement. The MAINTAINING AGENCY will receive one 
single payment at the end of each fiscal year for satisfactory completion of service.  

The per-light unit rate shall increase by 3% each fiscal year. E.g., the per-light unit rate of $309.10 in fiscal year 
21/22 shall increase to $318.37 in fiscal year 22/23. 

Total Payment Amount for each fiscal year is calculated by inputting the actual number of qualifying types of lights 
into the table below and multiplying by the unit rate and ___%. Example: 330 (lights) x $      (unit rate) x 0.90 
(90% requirement) = $   0.00  

Type of Light # of lights LED or HPS Unit rate % Total

High Mast HPS 0.00 

Standard HPS 0.00 

Underdeck HPS 0.00 

Sign HPS 0.00 

High Mast LED 0.00 

Standard LED 0.00 

Underdeck LED 0.00 

Sign LED 0.00 

Page 57

Item #8.



State Road 

Number
County

Begin Milepost or Nearest 

Cross Road

End Milepost or Nearest 

Cross Road

Number of Lights 

Being Currently 

Maintained Within 

These Limits

Type of Light(s): High 

Mast, Standard, 

Underdeck, or Sign

LED or HPS

SR 17 Clay Orion Hall Park Road 81

SR 16 E Clay Hwy 17 Red Cove Road 3

SR 16 W Clay Hwy 17 Randal Road 46

TOTAL # OF LIGHTS BEING 

MAINTAINED: 130

Florida Department of Transportation Highway Lighting Maintenance and Compensation 
Agreement Inventory

L. Steve Kennedy, City Manager  904-297-7500
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Page 58

Item #8.



RESOLUTION NO. R-13-2021 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE 

SPRINGS, FLORIDA, TO THE FLORIDA DEPATMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A NEW 

HIGHWAY SYSTEM LIGHT, MAINTENANCE AND COMPENSATOIN 

AGREEMENT. 
 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation, hereafter referred to 

as the “FDOT” find it necessary for the City of Green Cove Springs, hereafter referred 

to as the “MAINTAINING AGENCY”, to execute and deliver to the FDOT the 

agreement identified as STATE HIGHWAY SYSTEM LIGHTING, 

MAINTENANCE AND COMPENSATION AGREEMENT, hereafter referred to as 

the “Agreement”. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

MAINTAINING AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. That Edward R. Gaw, Mayor, is hereby authorized and directed to 

execute and deliver the agreement to the FDOT. 
 

SECTION 2. That a certified copy of this Resolution be forwarded to the FDOT 

along with the executed Agreement. 

 

DONE AND RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA IN REGULAR SESSION THIS 6TH DAY 

OF JULY 2021. 
 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

 

              

      Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

        

Erin West, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

       

L. J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

Page 59

Item #8.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Steve Thomas 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of a PO to paint the downstairs of The City Hall Building to Florida 

Paint Company in the amount of $ 33,765.00.  Steve Thomas 
 

BACKGROUND 

City Council approved painting the inside of City Hall in the budget for FY 2021 and staff has reached 

out to 6 different painting contractors to do the work.  Three companies visited City Hall to evaluate the 

job for quotation purposes, but only one company has given a quote for the job. All other contractors 

said they did not have the manpower to complete or time to even quote the job. 

Additionally, staff is requesting the Council waive the formal bid process for this item as it would likely 

result in a higher overall price.  This exception is allowed in Chapter 5 of the City’s Purchasing Policies 

and Procedures Manual adopted by Council in 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Account # 001-1319-5004640 in the amount of $33,765.00 approved in FY Budget 2021 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Purchase Order to paint the downstairs of The City Hall Building to Florida Paint Company 

in the amount of $ 33,765.00 

 

Page 60

Item #9.



Page 61

Item #9.



Page 62

Item #9.



Page 63

Item #10.



Page 64

Item #10.



Page 65

Item #10.



Page 66

Item #10.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: 07/06/2021 

FROM: Derek Asdot, Chief of Police 

SUBJECT: City Council approval for Detective Erin Vineyard to attend the Police Internal Affairs 

Course. 
 

BACKGROUND 

City Council approval for Detective Erin Vineyard to attend the Police Internal Affairs Course in 

Altamonte Springs, FL from 8/2/21 – 8/6/21. Total amount due for the course is $895.00. This is to be 

taken out of training account # 104-2021-5005410. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

City Council approval for Detective Erin Vineyard to attend the Police Internal Affairs Course. 

Page 67

Item #10.



Page 68

Item #11.



Page 69

Item #11.



Page 70

Item #11.



Page 71

Item #11.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: 07/06/2021 

FROM: Derek Asdot, Chief of Police 

SUBJECT: City Council approval for Commander John Guzman to attend the Police Internal Affairs 

Course. 
 

BACKGROUND 

City Council approval for Commander John Guzman to attend the Police Internal Affairs Course at the 

University of North Florida in Jacksonville, FL from 9/20/21 – 9/24/21. Total amount due for the course 

is $895.00. This is to be taken out of training account # 104-2021-5005410. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

City Council approval for Commander John Guzman to attend the Police Internal Affairs Course. 

Page 72

Item #11.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval to issue a purchase order in the amount of $28,010.85 to Irby for 

electric conduit for the Magnolia Point Third Feed Project. Scott Schultz 
 

BACKGROUND 

As part of the Magnolia Point Third Feed Project, the electric department plans to replace the overhead 

lines on Harbor Road with underground lines that run across the back of the Harbor Road WWTP 

facility.  In order to coordinate this conduit installation with the HRWWTP contractor, this conduit 

needs to be installed by July 30, 2021.  Given the six-to-eight-week lead times on conduit, staff has 

issued the purchase order to Irby for the conduit based on the four quotes that the city received.  Staff is 

now requesting that Council ratify this purchase order.   

Staff is also requesting a variance from the City’s purchasing policies and procedures based on the 

“exception” item that is presented for City Council consideration in separate action this evening.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

$28,010.85 to the Electric Department CIP account number 401-3032-5006510. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve purchase order in the amount of $28,010.85 to Irby for electric conduit for the Magnolia Point 

Third Feed Project. 
 

Page 73

Item #12.



Page 74

Item #12.



Page 75

Item #12.



Page 76

Item #12.



Page 77

Item #12.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Steve Thomas 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of a Pay Application # 1 from KBT Contracting Corp in the amount 

of $48,302.28 for design & build out of ASACC classroom for AMIkids, and approval of 

Change Order # 1 for replacing the windows in an amount not to exceed $15,200.00.  Steve 

Thomas 
 

BACKGROUND 

City Council Approved to enter a contract with KBT Contracting for the design/ build at ASACC 

Classrooms for AMIKids classroom renovation on June 01, 2021, the bid contract was a Lump sum of 

$460,030.00 and included the gang bathrooms. Staff did not accept Additive Alternate # 2, replacing the 

windows, for $30,500 because of trying to stay within a manageable budget number. The contractor 

submitted a proposal with the 30% design drawings showing he could do the windows at a lower cost 

and staff believed this was a more reasonable cost to add.  

If approved, Change Order #1 at a cost of $15,200.00 will increase the total contract amount to 

$475,230.00. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$48,302.28 out of Account # 001-1214-5006326. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Pay Application # 1 from KBT Contracting Corp in the amount of $48,302.28 for design & 

build out of ASACC classroom for AMIkids, and approve Change Order # 1 for replacing the windows 

in an amount not to exceed $15,200.00, increasing the total contract amount to $475,230.00. 
 

Page 78

Item #13.



Page 79

Item #13.



Page 80

Item #13.



Page 81

Item #13.



Page 82

Item #13.



Page 83

Item #13.



 
CGC1520730/CBC058625/CCC1330401 

5105 Blanding Blvd. 
Jacksonville, Florida 32210 

904/771-2876 Fax 
904/647-9200 Office 
info@kbtcorp.com 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

Change Order #1 

 

June 10, 2021 

TO:  Steve Thomas 

PROJECT:  Design/Build – ASACC Classroom Building Renovation 

Project #: 2021-05 

 

Modify Additive Alt. 2 as presented in the bid for Design/Build - ASMCC Classroom Renovations from a 

bid price of $30,500 to a price of $15,200 with the following modifications: 

 

A) Window sills remain at same height in that it has been determined not necessary to lower for 

fire egress. 

 
B) Window size to be 48 +/- wide by 60” to 70” tall.  Existing widths will not be modified.  Final 

height will be determined by the most aesthetically correct considering the new height of 

interior ceilings and exterior components.  This proposal is for the exterior to be siding with 

trim, not stucco. 

 

C) If approved, elevations of design will be given for review. 

 

 

Thank You 

 

Keith Timmons 

 

 

Page 84

Item #13.

mailto:info@kbtcorp.com


 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Steve Thomas 

SUBJECT: City Council approval to issue a Purchase Order to Jax Utilities Management, Inc in the 

amount of $29,884.00 for a Stormwater Repair at the Augusta Savage Facility.  Steve 

Thomas 
 

BACKGROUND 

The city had the parking lot designed by Tocoi Engineering at ASACC in October, 2020.  The parking 

lot and associated drainage was constructed according to plan by Jax Utilities Management, Inc.  After 

thesignificant amount of rainfall over the last month, a 48” storm pipe popped out of the ground around 

the new pond area.  

Staff has had a discussion with Tocoi about the damages and they agreed that they were partially at fault 

and agreed to design the repair and to split the repair cost with the City 50/50. We asked Jax Utilities 

and Jeff’s Excavating to give us a quote to make the repairs.  Jax Utilities provided a written quote of 

$29,884.00 to make the repairs and Jeff’s Excavating provided a verbal quote of $32,000.00.  Due to the 

urgent nature of the repairs and because they are familiar with the project, staff is asking Council to 

award a purchase order to Jax Utilities in the amount of $29,884.00 to complete the repairs. 

Additionally, staff is requesting the Council waive the formal bid process for this item given the urgent 

nature of the repair as well as it would likely result in a higher overall price.  This exception is allowed 

in Chapter 5 of the City’s Purchasing Policies and Procedures Manual adopted by Council in 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

From Account # 001-1214-5006326; Total $29,884.00; City Impact $14,942.00 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Purchase Order to Jax Utilities Management, Inc in the amount of $29,884.00 for a 

Stormwater Repair at the Augusta Savage Facility. 
 

Page 85

Item #14.



Page 86

Item #14.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Contractor’s Pay Request #2 for Williams Industrial Services, 

LLC, in the amount of $459,854.82, for the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection (FDEP), State Revolving Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility 

(WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, SRF Agreement No. WW1000420. 
 

BACKGROUND 

On June 7, 2016, Council provided direction for staff to pursue “Scenario #3” (See excerpt from the June 7th 
staff report) sewer system expansion/improvements.   
 
Excerpt from the June 7, 2016 Staff Report 
 
“At the October 20, 2015 meeting, Council authorized submittal of a loan application under the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) State Revolving Fund (SRF) program for the “Phase I” 
planning portion of the project which would be completed by Mittauer & Associates.  In addition, the Council 
approved a task order to Mittauer & Associates to prepare the planning documents necessary to secure 
capital financing under the SRF Program to complete a Facilities Plan, Environmental Plan, Capital 
Financing Plan, and associated Special Studies.”  
 
The staff report reviewed additional aspects of the analysis to date, and summarized three main 
development scenarios the City was considering.  They are outlined as follows: 
 
Scenario 1:      AWWTP only (no reclaimed water improvements) 
Scenario 2:      AWWTP and Reclaimed Water System Improvements 
Scenario 3:     AWWTP, Reclaimed Water System, and Existing Collection System Improvements 
 
As a result of the discussions and preliminary analysis, the City selected Scenario 3, which had the following 
implications: 
 
“Scenario 3 – AWWTP, reclaimed water system improvements and collection system improvements (repair 
and replacement of clay lines city-wide) 
 
                       Project Cost                            $35,181,000 
                       Loan Amount                          $28,681,000 
                       Retained Earnings                    $1,000,000 
                       Impact Fee Revenue                $1,200,000 
                       Grants                                       $4,300,000  
                       Annual Loan Payment              $1,316,100” 
 
The costs are planning-level values and the annual loan payment will be based on final bid prices, interest 
rates at the time of construction loan acquisition, and accumulated grants/retained earnings/impact-fee 
revenue. Each scenario was reviewed with the following common variables: All scenarios assumed a 2% 

Page 87

Item #15.



increase in the number of wastewater customers each year through FY’20 and a 0.5% increase each year 
from FY’21 through FY’25.All scenarios assumed $6,500,000 available in grant funding, retained earnings, 
and impact fee revenue dedicated to the project up front in order to reduce the total loan repayment 
amount.  Retained earnings is estimated at $1,000,000.  Impact fee revenue is estimated at 
$1,200,000.  Grant funding from all sources is estimated at $4,300,000.  Although, as indicated earlier in this 
writing, we may qualify for 45% grant funds from SRF, the total dollar amount available each year for grant 
funding is limited.  Staff feels that $4,300,000 is a reasonably conservative and prudent estimate as to the 
amount of grant dollars we may receive.  However, depending on the number of projects funded by the SRF 
program in the next two years and the amount of grant funding available, that number can certainly increase. 
All scenarios assume a 2.2%, 30-year loan repayment which is in line with the Capital Financing Plan 
formulas.  However, based on recent interest rate history in the SRF program and use of interest rate buy-
downs such as requiring Davis-Bacon wage requirements and Buy-American provisions of the contractor, 
we may be able to realize lower interest rates when our loan is actually processed.  The 30-year loan 
timeline contemplates repayments from FY’21 through FY’50.Reynolds Park re-development is not factored 
in to any of the scenarios. 
 
On August 10, 2016, SRF staff approved SRF Project # 100400 granting the City of Green Cove Springs a 
$2,261,200.00 loan with a principal forgiveness amount of $1,491,035.00 to address the project’s design, 
permitting, and SSES needs.  These tasks were completed and the project has been completed / closed. 
 
On October 18, 2016, the City Council adopted after second and final reading, Ordinance O-13-2016, 
authorizing the expenditures of up to $34,158,100.00 for capital improvements to the City's wastewater 
treatment, wastewater collection and reclaimed water systems 
 
On August 8, 2018, FDER SRF staff approved SRF Project # 100400 granting the City of Green Cove 
Springs a $6,120,600.00 loan with a principal forgiveness amount of $4,063,425.00 for Phase I Construction 
which includes reclaimed water, electrical and improvements to Lift Stations #2 and #4. 
 
On October 2, 2018 Council approved Resolution No. R-29-2018, a Resolution authorizing staff to submit 
and mayor to execute a loan application to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) 
State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program for Phase I Construction of the Consolidated Advanced 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) and associated Lift Station Improvements. 
 
On December 4, 2018, council approved and authorized the execution of the contract  for SRF Project # 
100400 granting the City of Green Cove Springs a $6,120,600.00 loan with a principal forgiveness amount 
of $4,063,425.00 for Phase I Construction which includes reclaimed water, electrical and improvements to 
Lift Stations #2 and #4. 
 
On March 19, 2019, Council approved bid tabulations and awarded Sawcross the plant portion, and R2T the 
lift station portion, of the Phase I construction. 
 
Phase I construction being completed in May of 2020, Council authorized staff to submit a Request for 
Inclusion (RFI) to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) State Revolving Fund (SRF) 
for Construction Phase II, which includes construction of a 1.25 million gallon per day (MGD) - annual 
average daily flow (AADF), advanced wastewater treatment facility (AWWTF), in the amount of 
$18,165,500.00. 
 
On August 12, 2020, the FDEP SRF program awarded the City a $12,000,000.00, 20 year loan, with 
$4,452,835.00 in principal forgiveness (grant).  Due to a limitation of available funds, the SRF program 
withheld $6,186,500.00 in requested funds, which will be reviewed for award and addition to the current loan 
the next award period. 

On 10/6/2020 City Council approved Resolution No. R-27-2020, a Resolution authorizing staff to submit and 
Mayor to execute the loan application for SRF Loan # 100401 to the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (FDEP) State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program for Phase II Construction of the Consolidated 

Page 88

Item #15.



Advanced Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) in the amount of $12,000,000.00 with a principal 
forgiveness (grant) amount of $4,452,835.00 providing for an actual repayment amount of $7,547,165.00. 

On 1/19/2021 the City Council approved of, and authorized the Mayor, City Attorney and City Clerk to  
execute, the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF), Construction Loan Agreement WW100420, Grant 
Agreement SG 100421 for Phase II Construction of the Consolidated Advanced Wastewater Treatment 
Plant (AWWTP) in the amount of $12,000,000.00 with a principal forgiveness (grant) amount of 
$4,452,835.00 providing for an actual repayment amount of $7,547,165.00.  The original loan request was 
for $18,106,500.00.  Due to limited funds, the SRF program limited the award to $12,000,000.00, with the 
plan to award the city an additional $6,106,500.00 in July 2021. 

On February 2, 2021, eight Sealed Bids were opened for the construction of the above referenced project.  
Williams Industrial was determined to be the lowest qualified bidder.  The estimated budget / original SRF 
loan request was for $18,106,500.00.  This project came in under projected budget, including the Additive 
Alternates.  

On 2/10/2021 Council approved the Engineer’s Recommendation of Award to Williams Industrial Services, 
LLC, in the amount of $15,426,644.33, for the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), 
State Revolving Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, SRF 
Agreement No. WW1000420. 
 

Council approved Contractor’s Pay Request #1 in the amount of $669,305.42 for Williams Industrial on 

6/16/2021  

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$459,854.82 from the Wastewater CIP Budget 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Contractor’s Pay Request #2 for Williams Industrial Services, LLC, in the amount of 

$459,854.82, for the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), State Revolving Fund 

(SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, SRF Agreement No. 

WW1000420. 

Page 89

Item #15.



Page 90

Item #15.



Page 91

Item #15.



Page 92

Item #15.



Page 93

Item #15.



Page 94

Item #15.



Page 95

Item #15.



Page 96

Item #15.



Page 97

Item #15.



Page 98

Item #15.



Page 99

Item #15.



Page 100

Item #15.



Page 101

Item #15.



Page 102

Item #15.



Page 103

Item #15.



Page 104

Item #15.



Page 105

Item #15.



Page 106

Item #15.



Page 107

Item #15.



Page 108

Item #15.



Page 109

Item #15.



 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, MAY 04, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag - David Poupard - Hibernia Baptist 

Roll Call 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Van Royal, Vice Mayor Ed Gaw, Council Member 

Connie Butler, Council Member Matt Johnson, Council Member Steven Kelley 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: L.J. Arnold, III, City Attorney, Steve Kennedy, City Manager, Mike 

Null, Assistant City Manager, Erin West, City Clerk 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

No comments 

AWARDS & RECOGNITION 

Motion to approve the National Public Service Recognition Week and National Police Week 

proclamations. 

Motion made by Council Member Butler, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member Johnson, 

Council Member Kelley 

1. Proclamation - National Public Service Recognition Week 

Mayor Royal reads the proclamation and recognizes all City Staff. 

 

2. Proclamation - National Police Week 

Mayor Royal reads the proclamation and recognizes the Green Cove Springs Police Department. 

PRESENTATIONS 

3. Presentation by the North Florida TPO for the draft of the 2021/2022 to 

2025/2026 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Wanda Forest, Transportation 

Planning Manager 

Ms. Forest gave a presentation and overview of the 5 Year Plan and Highlight Projects.  Council 

discussion followed. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

4. Future Land Use Amendment from Commercial High Intensity to Central Business District for 

property located at 200-206 Orange Avenue  Michael Daniels 

Page 110

Item #16.



May 04, 2021 Minutes Page 2 of 4 

 

 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-07-2021 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels presents and explains the Ordinance. 

Mayor Royal opens the public hearing. 

Following no public comment, the public hearing is closed. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve for form and legality the first reading of Ordinance O-07-2021, to 

amend the Future Land Use of the property described therein from Commercial High 

Intensity to Central Business District. 

Motion made by Council Member Johnson, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

5. Rezoning from Gateway Corridor Commercial to Central Business District for property located at 

200-206 Orange Avenue  Michael Daniels 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-08-2021 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels advises the presentation for Item 4 and Item 5 

were the same. 

Mayor Royal opens the public hearing. 

James Morrissey 1327 Riviera Dr, GCS speaks to the Council concerning the shared property 

rights. 

City Attorney Arnold advises there would be a shared parking agreement between the property 

owners. 

Following no further public comment, the public hearing is closed. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve for form and legality the 1st reading of Ordinance O-08-2021, to amend 

the Zoning of the property described therein from Gateway Corridor Commercial to 

Central Business District. 

Motion made by Council Member Butler, Seconded by Council Member Johnson. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted 

by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion 

is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. Backup 

documentation and staff recommendations have been previously submitted to the city council on these 

items. 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda Item 6 through 10. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Johnson. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

Page 111

Item #16.



May 04, 2021 Minutes Page 3 of 4 

 

 

6. City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, Disbursement Request #12 

in the amount of $27,500.00 to the Design Loan Agreement for the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection (FDEP), Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan 

Application DW 100102 for $356,800.00, for the design of capital improvements to the City's 

Water System. Scott Schultz 

7. City Council approval to pay Application #7 to KBT Contracting Corp in the amount of 

$50,111.16 for the new library building. Steve Thomas 

8. City Council to approve an Invoice for the Engineering and construction of the Drive through 

canopy at the Food Bank Facility in the amount of $ 87,000.00. Steve Thomas 

9. City Council approval for Amanda Upton to attend Special Event Planning and Management 

Training in Orlando, FL.  Derek Asdot 

10. City Council approval of, and authorization for the City Manager to execute, a Professional 

Services Agreement with Planet Swim, LLC  Steve Kennedy 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

11. FMPA - May 2021 Bob Page 

Mr. Page gave an overview of May and discussion followed. 

12. City Council discussion and direction related to solar power net metering rates. Mike Null 

Assistant City Manager, Mike Null explains the item, the process, and the timeline for solar 

power net metering rates. 

Dan O'Hagan with FMPA speaks to the Council concerning the City’s solar power net metering 

program. 

Blue Cards: 

Tina Sachs 3061 Anderson Rd., GCS, speaks to the Council concerning GCS solar power net 

metering program.  Ms. Sachs approves of the decision and advises she was the first solar power 

customer in GCS. 

James Morrissey 1327 Riviera Dr., GCS, speaks to the Council concerning GCS solar power net 

metering program and the issues he had setting up his solar power. 

Grayson Jones 1355 Blackmon Rd., GCS, speaks to the Council concerning GCS solar power net 

metering program.  Thank you to Mike Null for working with him on this issue.   

Pete Wilking 10418 New Berlin Rd. Unit 223, Jacksonville, speaks to the Council concerning 

GCS solar power net metering program.  Mr. Wilking advises he is the president and founder of 

A1A Solar Contracting. 

Council discussion follows. 

Kim Candelaria 3070 Gosman Rd., GCS, speaks concerning the grandfathering in of solar 

customers for the solar power net metering rates and advises they also use batteries. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to direct staff to prepare and bring back an ordinance to amend the City’s Net 

Metering Service Rate Schedule to reimburse customers at the “avoided cost” rate only, to 

include a grandfathering clause for existing solar customers, pending approval by the 

Florida Public Service Commission. 

Page 112

Item #16.



May 04, 2021 Minutes Page 4 of 4 

 

 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Johnson. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Council Member Butler, Council Member Johnson, Council Member 

Kelley 

Abstain: Vice Mayor Gaw 

13. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports. 

The City Manager and City Attorney made comments regarding various city activities, events, 

operations, and projects 

14. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

The City Council made comments regarding various city activities, events, operations, and 

projects. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, the meeting was adjourned at 10:03 

p.m. 

 

 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
 

 B. Van Royal, Mayor 

  

Attest:  

 
 

Erin West, City Clerk  

 

Page 113

Item #16.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Mike Null 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Resolution No. R-12-2021, a Resolution authorizing a new FDOT 

Maintenance Agreement, Contract No. TBD, for the period of July 16, 2021 through July 

15, 2024 in the amount of $38,673.64 (annually) and authorizing the Mayor, City Clerk, 

and City Attorney to execute said Agreement.  Mike Null 
 

BACKGROUND 

The City entered into a Maintenance Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) 

in July 2003 for the maintenance of right-of-ways for State Highways throughout the City.  A history of 

annual payments from FDOT are listed below:  

 2003 - 2006 $35,000.00  

 2006 - 2009 $35,000.00  

 2009 - 2012 $37,963.77  

 2012 - 2015 $37,963.77  

 2015 - 2018 $38,673.64  

 2018 - 2021 $38,673.64 

 2021 - 2024 $38,673.64 (Proposed) 

 

This new Agreement is for a three (3) year consecutive period.  Invoices are sent to FDOT on a 

quarterly basis. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Revenues received annually in the amount of $38,673.64 from the  Florida Department of 

Transportation for the period of July 16, 2021 through July 15, 2024. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Resolution No. R-12-2021, a Resolution authorizing a Maintenance Agreement, Contract No. 

TBD, with the Florida Department of Transportation for the period of July 16, 2021 through July 15, 

2024, and authorization for the Mayor, City Clerk, and City Attorney to execute said Contract. 
 

Page 114

Item #17.



RESOLUTION NO. R-12-2021 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE 

SPRINGS, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING A MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT, 

CONTRACT NO. TBD, WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council and the Florida Department of Transportation desire to 

enter into a maintenance agreement setting forth the various rights, duties and 

responsibilities for the city maintenance of certain state roads. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. That the City Council of the City of Green Cove Springs hereby 

authorizes the Maintenance Agreement, Contract No. TBD, between the City and the 

Florida Department of Transportation dated July 16, 2021 through July 15, 2024; and 

 

SECTION 2. That the Mayor, City Clerk, and City Attorney are hereby authorized 

to execute said Maintenance Agreement, Contract No. TBD, attached hereto and 

marked Exhibit “A”. 

 

DONE AND RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, IN DUPLICATE, IN REGULAR 

SESSION THIS 6TH DAY OF JULY, 2021. 

 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

 

              

      Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

        

Erin West, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

       

L. J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

Page 115

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 1 

 

MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the 
State of Florida Department of Transportation (“Department”) and City of Green Cove Springs, Clay County 
, Florida (“Agency”). 
 

-RECITALS- 
 
1. The Department owns and currently maintains those portions of the state highway system identified 
in Exhibit “A” (“Property”); and 
 
 
2.  The Agency desires to assume the maintenance responsibilities of the Property; and 
 
4. The Property is within or adjacent to the corporate limits of the Agency; and 
 
4. The Department is amenable to the Agency’s desires and will compensate the Agency for their 
maintenance efforts pursuant to Section 335.055, Florida Statutes, and in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement; and 
 
6.  The Agency will be compensated quarterly at such time as Agency provides a completed copy of 
the form identical to attached Exhibit “B” demonstrating completion of the maintenance responsibilities 
required by the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and 
 
7.  The Agency, by Resolution No. _____________ dated ___________, attached as Exhibit “C”, 
authorizes its officers to enter this Agreement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, with full knowledge and understanding of the laws governing the subject 
matter of this Agreement, and in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual covenants and 
conditions contained in this Agreement, the parties, intending to be legally bound, acknowledge and agree 
as follows: 
 

1. RECITALS & EXHIBITS 
The above recitals and attached exhibits, if any, are specifically incorporated by reference and made part 
of this Agreement. 
 
2. EFFECTIVE DATE 
The “Effective Date” of this Agreement shall be the date the last of the parties to be charged executes the 
Agreement. 
 
3. TERM 
The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) consecutive years, unless otherwise terminated 
by the Department in writing.  The operation, maintenance, and repair duties required by paragraph 6, 
below, will actually commence on________________. 
 
4. E-VERIFY  
The Agency (A) shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Agency during the term of the contract; and  
(B) shall expressly require any subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant to the state 
contract to likewise utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the contract term. 
 
5. COMPLIANCE 
The Agency shall perform this Agreement, in a good and workmanlike manner, with reasonable care, in 
accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement and all applicable federal, state, local, 
administrative, regulatory, safety and environmental laws, codes, rules, regulations, policies, procedures, 

Page 116

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 2 

 

guidelines, standards and permits, as the same may be constituted and amended from time to time, 
including, without limitation, those of the Department, St. Johns River Water Management District, Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection, Environmental Protection Agency, Army Corps of Engineers, 
United States Coast Guard, Clay County, Florida and other local governmental entities (“Governmental 
Law”). 
  
6. OPERATION, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR  
A. The Agency shall operate, maintain & repair the Property in a good and workmanlike manner, with 
reasonable care, in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, unless otherwise noted in Exhibit “A”, the locations to be maintained by the Agency shall be 
maintained pursuant to the maintenance standards as defined in the Department’s Maintenance Rating 
Program (“MRP”) Handbook and in accordance with Department Procedure, Roadway and Roadside 
Maintenance, Topic No. 850-000-015-i, and all Governmental Law, as defined in Paragraph 5, above. 
Should the Department determine that any item of maintenance related to the Property has fallen below 
the desired maintenance standard, the Agency agrees to immediately bring the deficient item up to the 
maintenance standard, at its sole cost and expense.  The Agency will not be held responsible for a failed 
MRP rating, so long as such rating is not based on any negligence, intentional or wrongful act, omission or 
breach of contract by the Agency. 
 
B. The Agency shall maintain all turf and landscaped areas within the Property, including, without limitation, 
performing the following: 
 
 (1) Routinely mow, cut and trim all grass and turf (total greenscape), as well as remove grass 
and turf clippings from the roadway/curb/sidewalk, in accordance with the State of Florida “Guide for 
Roadside Vegetation Management” (2012), as the same may be constituted and amended from time to 
time, and the local National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit requirements; and 
 
 (2)  Routinely prune and trim all plants and trees, for aesthetic purposes and for the benefit of 
the health, safety and welfare of those members of the public traversing or otherwise utilizing the Property; 
and 
 
 (3) Routinely remove dead, diseased, or otherwise deteriorated plants; and 
 
 (4) Routinely keep litter removed from the Property; and 
 
 (5) Routinely remove and dispose of all trimmings, roots, litter and other material resulting from 
the activities described herein; and 
 
 (6) Routinely edge and sweep any excess grass from sidewalks, curbs, and gutters; and 
 
 (7) Routinely sweep roadways, curbs, and gutters, valley gutters, intersections, and barrier 
wall gutters. 
 
C.  The Department and the Agency shall be responsible jointly for clean-up, removal and disposal of debris 
within the Property following and resulting from natural disasters, including, without limitation, hurricanes 
and tornadoes.           
 
D. If the Department determines that the Agency is not maintaining the Property in accordance with the 
terms and provisions of this Agreement, the Department shall deliver written notification of such to the 
Agency.  The Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the date of the Department’s written notice, or such 
other time as the Department and the Agency mutually agree in writing, to correct the deficiency and provide 
the Department with written notice of the same. 
E. If the Department determines that the deficiency remains after receipt of the Agency’s written notice 
indicating that the deficiency was corrected, the Department, within its discretion, may: (1) provide the 
Agency with written authorization granting such additional time as the Department deems appropriate to 
correct the deficiency; or (2) correct the deficiency at the Agency’s sole cost and expense.  Should the 

Page 117

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 3 

 

Department elect to correct the deficiency, the Department shall provide the Agency with an invoice for the 
costs incurred by the Department to correct the deficiency and the Agency shall pay the invoice in 
accordance with the “Payment” section of this Agreement.  
 
F. If at any time in the sole determination of the Department, the integrity or safety of the Property requires 
immediate maintenance for the benefit of public health, safety or welfare, the Department may perform 
such maintenance it deems appropriate under the circumstances.  The Department shall attempt to notify 
the Agency prior to action under this section but may take necessary steps to correct emergency situations 
prior to such notification in order to prevent eminent danger to public health, safety or welfare. 
 
G. The Parties’ representatives and points of contact for the administration of this Agreement shall be 
identified in the “Notice” section of this Agreement.   
 
7. MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 
A. The Agency shall be responsible for the maintenance of traffic (“MOT”) at all times during the 
performance of this Agreement.  MOT shall be performed in accordance with applicable Governmental Law 
and the most current edition of each of the following, as the same may be constituted and amended from 
time to time, all of which are incorporated herein and made part of this Agreement by reference: (1) Section 
102 of the Department’s Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction; (2) the Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices; (3) the Department’s Standard Plans, Index 102-600; and (4) other 
applicable Governmental Law. 
 
B. If the Agency fails to perform MOT as required herein, the Department, within its discretion, may elect to 
perform MOT at the Agency’s sole cost and expense.  Should the Department perform MOT, the 
Department shall provide the Agency with an invoice for the costs incurred by the Department and the 
Agency shall pay the invoice in accordance with the “Payment” section of this Agreement. 
 
8. IMPROVEMENTS & MODIFICATIONS 
A. The Department may require the Agency to improve or modify the Property if the Department determines: 
(1) improvements or modifications are required by applicable Governmental Law; or (2) improvements or 
modifications will benefit the Department in the conduct of its business. 
 
B. Required improvements and modifications shall be subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement, 
specifically including, without limitation, the “Maintenance” section of this Agreement. 
 
C. Improvements and modifications shall be constructed and completed by the Agency within sixty (60) 
days of the date of the Department’s written notice requiring improvements or modifications. 
 
9. ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPING 
The Agency shall not install additional landscaping within the Property without first seeking and obtaining 
required approvals and permits from the Department.  Such additional landscaping shall be automatically 
included within, and subject to, the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
10. PERMISSIVE USE 
This Agreement creates a permissive use only.  The Agency shall not acquire any right, title, interest or 

estate in the Property by virtue of the execution, operation, effect or performance of this Agreement. 

11. EMINENT DOMAIN AND DAMAGES 
Under no circumstances shall the Department’s exercise of any right provided in this Agreement create any 
right, title, interest or estate entitling the Agency to full and just compensation from the Department either 
through inverse condemnation or eminent domain laws or any similar laws regarding the taking of property 
for public purposes.  The Agency forever waives and relinquishes all legal rights and monetary claims which 
it has, or which may arise in the future, for compensation or damages, including, without limitation, special 
damages, severance damages, removal costs, and loss of business profits resulting in any manner from 
the Department’s exercise of any right provided in this Agreement.  This waiver and relinquishment 

Page 118

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 4 

 

specifically includes all damages flowing from adjacent properties owned, leased or otherwise controlled 
by the Agency, as a result of the Department’s exercise of any right provided in this Agreement. 
 
12. REMOVAL 
The Department may require modification, relocation or removal of the landscaping, plants, trees, and other  
improvements located on or within the Property without liability to the Agency if: (1) any such improvements 
are not maintained in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement; (2) modification, 
relocation or removal of any such improvements is required by applicable Governmental Law; or (3) the 
Department determines that modification, relocation or removal of any such improvements is necessary or 
will benefit the Department in the conduct of its business.  The Agency shall modify, relocate or remove 
improvements designated by the Department for modification, relocation or removal and shall restore the 
Property to a condition that satisfies the requirements of applicable Governmental Law within thirty (30) 
days of the Department’s written notice requiring modification, relocation or removal.  The Agency shall 
bear all cost and expense of the modification, relocation, removal and restorative work, including, without 
limitation, the cost of required permits. 
 
13. PAYMENTS TO AGENCY 
A. The Department shall compensate the Agency for the performance of this Agreement in the amount of     
Nine Thousand Six-Hundred Sixty-Eight and 41/100 ($9,668.41) per quarter for a total sum of Thirty-
Eight Thousand Six-Hundred Seventy-Three and 64/100 ($38,673.64) per year.  Payments shall 
commence at the conclusion of the first three-month period following the Effective Date of this Agreement.  
The Department may suspend payment of any sums due hereunder without penalty or interest if the Agency 
is in breach of any term or provision of this Agreement at the time payment is due.  In the event this 
Agreement is terminated, payment shall be prorated for the quarter in which termination occurs. 
 
B. Prior to each quarterly payment, the Agency shall provide a completed copy of the form identical to 
attached Exhibit “B” demonstrating completion of the maintenance responsibilities required by the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement.       
 
14. PAYMENTS TO DEPARTMENT 
All Department invoices submitted to the Agency for payment pursuant to the terms and provisions of this 
Agreement are due and payable within thirty (30) days of the date of the invoice (“Due Date”).  Any portion 
of an invoice not received by the Department by the Due Date shall immediately thereafter begin accruing 
interest at a rate of interest established pursuant to §55.03, Fla. Stat., until paid in full. 
 
15. INDEMNIFICATION 
A. The Agency shall promptly defend, indemnify, hold the Department harmless from and pay all demands, 
claims, judgments, liabilities, damages, fines, fees, taxes, assessments, costs, losses, penalties, 
construction delay costs / penalties, expenses, attorneys’ fees and suits of any nature or kind whatsoever 
caused by, arising out of or related to the Agency’s performance, or breach, of this Agreement (“Liabilities”).  
The term “Liabilities” shall also specifically include all civil and criminal environmental liability arising, directly 
or indirectly under any Governmental Law, including, without limitation, liability under the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation 
and Liability Act (“CERCLA”), the Clean Air Act (“CAA”) and the Clean Water Act (“CWA”).  The Agency’s 
duty to defend, indemnify and hold the Department harmless specifically does not encompass indemnifying 
the Department for its negligence, intentional or wrongful acts, omissions or breach of contract. 
 
B. The Agency shall notify the Department in writing immediately upon becoming aware of any Liabilities.  
The Agency’s obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the Department harmless from any Liabilities, or at 
the Department's option to participate and associate with the Department in the defense and trial of any 
Liabilities, including any related settlement negotiations, shall be triggered by the Department's written 
notice of claim for indemnification to the Agency.  The Agency’s inability to evaluate liability, or its evaluation 
of liability, shall not excuse performance of the provisions of this paragraph. 
 
16. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY & LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

Page 119

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 5 

 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or otherwise interpreted as waiving the Department’s sovereign 
immunity protections, or as increasing the limits of liability set forth in §768.28, Florida Statutes, as the 
same may be amended from time to time.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or otherwise 
interpreted as waiving the Department’s limits of liability set forth in sections 376.305 and 337.27(4), Florida 
Statutes, as the same may be amended from time to time.  The Department’s liability for breach of this 
Agreement is specifically: (1) limited to actual damages incurred by the Agency as a direct result of the 
Department’s breach; and (2) further limited in amount and shall not, under any circumstances, exceed the 
limitations of liability for tort actions set forth in §768.28(5), Florida Statutes, as the same may be amended 
from times to time. 
 
17. NOTICE 
All notices, communications and determinations between the parties hereto and those required by this  
Agreement, including, without limitation, changes to the notification addresses set forth below, shall be in 
writing and shall be sufficient if mailed by regular United States Mail, postage prepaid, to the parties at the 
following addresses: 
 
  
 

Department: Florida Department of Transportation 
   Attn: Yongman Roberts, P.E 
   St. Augustine Maintenance Engineer    
   3600 DOT Road  
                                       St. Augustine, Florida 32084 
  
 

Agency: City of Green Cove Spring 
   Attn: City Manager 
   321 Walnut Street 
   Green Cove Springs, Fl 32043 
 
18. GOVERNING LAW 
This Agreement shall be governed in all respect by the laws of the State of Florida. 
 
19. INITIAL DETERMINATION OF DISPUTES 
The Department’s District Two Secretary (“District Secretary”) shall act as the initial arbiter of all questions, 
difficulties, and disputes concerning the interpretation, validity, performance or breach of this Agreement. 
 
20. VENUE AND JURISDICTION 
A. Venue for any and all actions arising out of or in any way related to the interpretation, validity, 
performance or breach of this Agreement that are not resolved to the mutual satisfaction of the parties by 
the Department’s District Secretary shall lie exclusively in a state court of appropriate jurisdiction in Leon 
County, Florida.   
 
B. The Agency and all persons and entities accepting an assignment of this Agreement, in whole or in part, 
shall be deemed as having consented to personal jurisdiction in the State of Florida and as having forever 
waived and relinquished all personal jurisdiction defenses with respect to any proceeding related to the 
interpretation, validity, performance or breach of this Agreement. 
 
21. JURY TRIAL 
The parties hereby waive the right to trial by jury of any dispute concerning the interpretation, validity, 
performance or breach of this Agreement, including, without limitation, damages allegedly flowing there 
from. 
 
22. ASSIGNMENT 
The Agency may not assign, pledge or transfer any of the rights, duties and obligations provided in this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the Department’s District Secretary or his/her designee.  The 

Page 120

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 6 

 

Department has the sole discretion and authority to grant or deny proposed assignments, with or without 
cause.  Nothing herein shall prevent the Agency from delegating its duties hereunder, but such delegation 
shall not release the Agency from its obligation to perform this Agreement. 
 
23. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective 
successors and assigns. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to confer any rights, privileges, benefits, 
obligations or remedies upon any other person or entity except as expressly provided for herein. 
 
24. VOLUNTARY EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT 
Each party warrants and represents to the other: (i) that it understands all of the rights and obligations set 
forth in this Agreement and the Agreement accurately reflects the desires of said party; (ii) each provision 
of this Agreement has been negotiated fairly at arm’s length; (iii) it fully understands the advantages and 
disadvantages of this Agreement and executes this Agreement freely and voluntarily of its own accord and 
not as a result of any duress, coercion, or undue influence; and (iv) it had the opportunity to have 
independent legal advice by counsel of its own choosing in the negotiation and execution of this Agreement. 
 
25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This instrument, together with the attached exhibits and documents made part hereof by reference, contains 
the entire agreement of the parties and no representations or promises have been made except those that 
are specifically set out in this Agreement. All prior and contemporaneous conversations, negotiations, 
possible and alleged agreements and representations, covenants, and warranties with respect to the 
subject matter of this Agreement, and any part hereof, are waived, merged herein and superseded hereby. 
 
26. SUFFICIENCY OF CONSIDERATION 
By their signature below, the parties hereby acknowledge the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency of 
consideration provided in this Agreement and forever waive the right to object to or otherwise challenge the 
same. 
 
27. WAIVER 
The failure of either party to insist on the strict performance or compliance with any term or provision of this 
Agreement on one or more occasions shall not constitute a waiver or relinquishment thereof and all such 
terms and provisions shall remain in full force and effect unless waived or relinquished in writing. 
 
28. INTERPRETATION 
No term or provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted for or against any party because that party or 
that party’s legal representative drafted the provision. 
 
29. CAPTIONS 
Paragraph title or captions contained herein are inserted as a matter of convenience and reference and in 
no way define, limit, extend or describe the scope of this Agreement or any provision hereof. 
 
30. SEVERANCE 
If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Agreement is adjudged by a court, agency or authority 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or otherwise unenforceable, all remaining parts of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the parties shall be bound thereby so long as principle 
purposes of this Agreement remain enforceable. 
 
31. COMPUTATION OF TIME 
In computing any period of time prescribed in this Agreement, the day of the act, event or default from which 
the designated period of time begins to run, shall not be included. The last day of the period shall be 
included unless it is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, in which event the period shall run until the end 
of the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. 
 
32. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT 
A modification or waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be effective only if made in writing  

Page 121

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 7 

 

and executed with the same formality as this Agreement. 
 
33. VENDOR OMBUDSMAN 
A Vendor Ombudsman has been established with the Department of Banking and Finance.  The duties of 
the Vendor Ombudsman include acting as an advocate for contractors/vendors who may be experiencing 
problems in obtaining timely payment(s) from a state agency.  The Vendor Ombudsman may be contacted 
by calling the State Comptroller’s Hotline at 1-800-848-3792. 
 
34. ANNUAL APPROPRIATION / FUNDING  
Pursuant to §339.135(6)(a), Florida Statutes, the Department’s obligation to fund this Agreement is 
contingent upon annual appropriation by the Florida Legislature.  This Agreement may be terminated by 
the Department without liability to the Agency if sufficient funds are not appropriated to the Department.  
The provisions of §339.135(6)(a), Florida Statutes, are set forth herein verbatim and made part of this 
Agreement, to wit: 
 
“The department, during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur any liability, or enter into any 
contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure of money in excess of the amounts budgeted as 
available for expenditure during such fiscal year. Any contract, verbal or written, made in violation of this 
subsection is null and void, and no money may be paid on such contract. The department shall require a 
statement from the comptroller of the department that funds are available prior to entering into any such 
contract or other binding commitment of funds. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the making of 
contracts for periods exceeding 1 year, but any contract so made shall be executory only for the value of 
the services to be rendered or agreed to be paid for in succeeding fiscal years; and this paragraph shall be 
incorporated verbatim in all contracts of the department which are for an amount in excess of $25,000 and 
which have a term for a period of more than 1 year.” 

 
35. PUBLIC RECORDS   
Agency shall comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  Specifically, the Agency shall:   

A. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the Department 

to perform this Agreement.   

B. Upon request from the Department’s custodian of public records, provide the Department with a copy of 

the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that 

does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.   

C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 

requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement and following 

completion of the Agreement if Agency does not transfer the records to the Department.    

D. Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the Department all public records in 

possession of Applicant or keep and maintain public records required by the Department to perform this 

Agreement. If Agency transfers all public records to the public Agency upon completion of this Agreement, 

Agency shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 

records disclosure requirements. If Agency keep and maintain public records upon completion of this 

Agreement, Agency shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored 

electronically must be provided to the Department, upon request from the Department’s custodian of public 

records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the Department. 

Failure by Agency to act in accordance with Chapter 119 and the foregoing shall be grounds for immediate 

unilateral cancellation of this Agreement by the Department.  Agency shall promptly provide the Department 

with a copy of any request to inspect or copy public records in possession of Agency and shall promptly 

provide the Department a copy of Applicant’s response to each such request. 

Page 122

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 8 

 

IF THE CONSULTANT/CONTRACTOR/VENDOR HAS QUESTIONS 

REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 

STATUTES, TO THE CONSULTANT'S/CONTRACTOR’S/VENDOR’S 

DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS 

AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT:  

District 2 
386-758-3727 
D2prcustodian@ dot.State.FL.us 
Florida Department of Transportation 
District 2 - Office of General Counsel 
1109 South Marion Avenue, MS 2009 
Lake City, FL 32025 

  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties execute this 
Agreement consisting of nine (9) pages, exclusive of exhibits. 
 
Florida Department of Transportation   Attest: 
 
By:        By:        
 
Printed Name:  Travis N. Humphries 
                                                                              Printed Name:  Elizabeth Engle ____ 
Title:  P.E. Director of Operations              Title:  District Administration   
 
Date:        Date:        
 
Legal Review: 
By:         
     Office of the General Counsel 
      Florida Department of Transportation 
 
 
 
 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

 
 
 
  

Page 123

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 9 

 

Agency       Attest: 
 
By:        By:        
 
Printed Name:       Printed Name:       
 
Title:        Title:        
 
Date:        Date:        

 
Legal Review: 
 
 
By:         
     Legal Counsel for Agency  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 124

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 10 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

City of Green Cove Springs 

MAINTENANCE LOCATIONS 

 

         

State 
Road 

Street 
Name 

From To 

Litter 
Removal 

(AC) 

Small 
Machine 
Mowing 

(AC) 

Mechanical 
Sweeping 

(mile) 

Tree 
Trimming 

(mile) 

Curb/Sidewalk 
Edging (mile) 

541 485 543 492 545 

16 
SR 16 
West 

Green 
Cove 

Springs 
City Limit 

SR 15 / US 
17 

2.2 2 2.32   6.66 

16 
SR 16 
East 

SR 15 / US 
17 

Beginning 
of 4-Lane 

10.17 9.25     1.27 

15 US 17 Harbor Rd 
Green 

Cove City 
Limit 

9.81 8.92 5.08   11.2 

         

  Totals 22.18 20.17 7.4 0 19.13 
  Cycles Per Year 12 9 12   2 
  Total Qty's Per Year 266.16 181.53 88.73 0.42 38.26 
  Unit Cost $9.18 $67.13 $41.94 $1,000.00 $520.00 
  Total Cost Per Year $2,443.79 $12,187.32 $3,721.25 $424.00 $19,897.28 
         

      
Overall Yearly Cost $38,673.64       

         

      
Quarterly Amount $9,668.41     

  

    

    

  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 125

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 11 

 

 
EXHIBIT “B” 

 
(MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES CHART) 

 
 
 
 
 

Activity 
Number 

Activity Title Activity Description 

485 Small Machine Mowing Mowing the roadside with small hand or riding mowers having a cutting width of 40 inches or 
less. 

492 Tree Trimming The trimming of the height and sides of trees and removal of undesirable trees (over 4 inches in 
diameter or trimming that cannot be done under activity 487).  To include the chipping and/or 
removal of all debris from work site. 

541 Roadside Litter 
Removal 

Cleaning roadways and roadsides of debris, such as cans, bottles, paper, trash and Adopt-A-
Highway litter.  Includes the hauling and disposal of litter. Does not include wayside parks, rest 
areas and service plaza barrels. 

543 Road Sweeping - 
Mechanical 

Machine sweeping of roadway to protect the facility from excessive accumulation of debris. 

545 Edging and Sweeping Removal of vegetation and debris from the curb, gutter and sidewalk. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement #:      Billing Period: 
 

Work 
Activity 
Number 

Unit of 
Measure 

 
Units Completed 

 
Completion Date 

 
Completion Date 

 
Completion Date 

485 Acre 
    

492 Mile 
    

541 Acre 
    

543 Curb 
Mile 

    

545 Mile 
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 126

Item #17.



MA with Agency FINAL Page 12 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

(RESOLUTION) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 127

Item #17.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Michael Daniels, AICP, Planning & Zoning Director 

SUBJECT: Review and approval of 2022 Food Truck Friday Dates 
 

BACKGROUND 

As the popularity of Food Truck Friday grows, it becomes necessary to schedule the event further in 

advance to allow scheduling of vendors and musicians. All dates fall on the second Friday of their 

respective month. 

The following dates are proposed for Food Truck Friday in 2022: 

 March 11 

 April 8 

 May 13 

 June 10 

 July 8 

 August 12 

 September 9 

 October 14 

 November 11 (Veterans Day) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the 2022 Food Truck Friday dates. 
 

Page 128

Item #18.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Erin West, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of the new process for Proclamations, Letter of Honor, and Key to 

the City.  Erin West 
 

BACKGROUND 

Attached is the application form to be completed for Proclamations, Letter of Honor, and Key to the 

City. 

It is requested that the application be submitted to staff in advance so that the proper items can be 

prepared and presented to the Council for approval a minimum of one (1) meeting before the item will 

be presented to the recipient. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the new process for Proclamations, Letter of Honor, and Key to the City which will include 

being approved by the Council a minimum of one meeting before the item will be presented to the 

recipient. 
 

Page 129

Item #19.



CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS 

PROCLAMATION, LETTER OF HONOR, 

AND KEY TO THE CITY 

APPLICATION FORM 

Return completed form to the City Clerk’s Office 

City of Green Cove Springs, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, FL  32043 

Requestor’s Name:  

Requestor’s Address: 

Requestor’s Telephone and Email:  

Person/Organization to be Honored: 

Event Title:  

Event Date, Time & Location: 

Type of Honor Requested: 

Proclamation     Letter of Honor   Key to the City 

Provide a detailed reason for the request including a list of accomplishments and how the 

individual/organization benefits the quality of life in the City of Green Cove Springs.  For 

Proclamations, provide a sample Proclamation or text for the “WHEREAS” clauses (attach 

additional sheets, if necessary): 

The Offices of the Mayor and City Clerk reserve the right to use submitted facts as deemed 

appropriate and may request additional information when necessary. 
Page 130

Item #19.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Mike Null 

SUBJECT: Approval of Pay Application #5 to Terry’s Electric for Chapman Substation Construction 

Improvements in the amount of $122,787.50, leaving a balance of $299,076.80 in contract 

number LC 2020-17 in the total amount of $879,086.00. Andy Yeager 
 

BACKGROUND 

At the December 8, 2020 City Council meeting, Council awarded ITB LC 2020-17 to perform 

construction work at the Chapman Substation to Terry’s Electric in the amount of $879,086.00. 

At the March 16, 2021 Council meeting, Council approved Pay Application #1 in the amount of 

$227,171.99 for payment. 

At the April 6, 2021 Council meeting, Council approved Pay Application #2 in the amount of 

$83,855.41 for payment. 

At the April 20, 2021 Council meeting, Council approved Pay Application #3 in the amount of 

$39,600.00 for payment. 

At the May 18, 2021 Council Meeting, Council approved Pay Application #4 in the amount of 

$106,594.30 for payment. 

Terry’s Electric has submitted Pay Application # 5 in the amount of $122,787.50 for payment.  The 

City’s Engineer, Patterson & Dewar, as well as city staff have reviewed the pay application and find it to 

be complete and recommend approval for payment. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The funds for the construction project in the amount of $879,086.00 are in the Electric Department’s FY 

2021 capital project fund. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Pay Application #5 to Terry’s Electric for Chapman Substation Construction Improvements in 

the amount of $122,787.50, leaving a balance of $299,076.80 in contract number LC 2020-17 in the 

total amount of $879,086.00. 
 

Page 131

Item #20.



 
 

1531 Hunt Club Blvd, Suite 200 
Gallatin, TN 37066 

 
(615) 527-7084 

pdengineers.com 
 

 
 

June 23, 2021 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Mike Null  
City of Green Cove Springs 
321 Walnut Street 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043  
 
Subject: Chapman Substation & SCADA Installation, Construction Contract LC 2020-17 
 Terry’s Electric – Application for Payment No. 5 
  
 
Mr. Null, 

 
Enclosed is the Contractor’s fifth invoice for the subject project.  We have reviewed the invoice and recommend 
payment as follows: 

 
Original Contract Amount 879,086.00$           
Total Amount Due to Date 610,536.00$           
Less Retainage (5%) (30,526.80)$            
Net Amount Due to Date 580,009.20$           
Less Previously Recommended Payments (457,221.70)$          
Net Amount Due this Application 122,787.50$           
Balance Remaining 299,076.80$            

 
Please forward payment directly to the address noted on the invoice. If you have any questions or comments, please 
feel free to call me at (615) 527-7077. 
 
Sincerely, 
Patterson & Dewar Engineers, Inc. 
 
 
 
P. Anthony Hanson, P.E. 
Principal Engineer 
ahanson@pdengineers.com 

Page 132

Item #20.

mailto:ahanson@pdengineers.com


122,787.50

6/23/2021

Page 133

Item #20.



Page 134

Item #20.



Page 135

Item #20.



FMPA Monthly Report 

 

July 2021 

 

Rate Call 

 

The average price of natural gas for the month was $2.85. Daily natural gas prices have fluctuated in the 

$3.10 - 3.80 range. Natural gas pricing continues its upward trend. The forward pricing curve moved to 

19% above the  FY21 budgeted natural gas price. 

 

The peak for the month occurred on 5 May at 4 PM. 

 

Natural gas accounted for 78% of the generation mix. Coal was 15% and nuclear was 3%. Solar 

generation was 2%. 

 

The Vero Beach cost recovery account stands at $4.6 million. This is $5.5 million below the planned 

target. 

 

Board of directors 

 

The Board of Directors approved the FY22 budgets for Stanton, Tri-Cities and St Lucie projects, funding 

for the engineering design of the Stanton coal to natural gas conversion, the Solar Project II charter and 

the funding of Whistling Duck site network transmission upgrades. 

 

Information items included quarterly regulatory compliance update, additional review of the St Lucie debt 

strategy and review of the FMPA’s risk inventory. 

 

Executive Committee 

 

The Executive Committee approved the FY22 Agency and ARP budgets, a fixed price purchase of natural 

gas for April-September 2022, funding for engineering design of the Stanton coal to natural gas 

conversion, the Solar Project II charter and the funding of Whistling Duck site network transmission 

upgrades and a re-paid gas purchase for the summer of FY21. 

 

 

Information items covered the Alachua Power Purchase Agreement, an update on the Florida Municipal 

Power Pool (FMPP) strategy, a recommendation to sunset the Conservation and Renewable Energy 

Advisory Committee (CREAC) and a review of Florida Power and Light (FPL) transmission refunds. 

Page 136

Item #21.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Erin West, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: City Council designation of Voting Delegate for the Annual Florida League of Cities 

Conference in Orlando, Florida on August 12-14, 2021.  Erin West 
 

BACKGROUND 

The attached information from the Florida League of Cities concerns selection of the City's delegate for 

voting on issues / items discussed at the Annual Conference sessions in Orlando, Florida on August 12-

14, 2021. 

In the past, the City Council has designated the Mayor as its voting delegate representing the 

City. Should the Mayor be unable to attend, then another Council Member would be designated as the 

City's representative at the Annual Conference. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the selection of a member of the City Council as the City’s Voting Delegate for the Florida 

League of Cities Annual Conference in Orlando, Florida on August 12-14, 2021. 
 

Page 137

Item #22.



 
 

 

 
To:   Key Official 
 
From:   Eryn Russell, Florida League of Cities 
 
Date:  June 11, 2021 
 
Subject: 95th Annual Conference Voting Delegate Information 
 
 
The Florida League of Cities’ Annual Conference will be held at the World Center Marriot, Orlando, Florida on 
August 12-14, 2021. This conference will provide valuable educational opportunities to help Florida’s 
municipal officials serve their citizenry more effectively. 
 
It is important that each municipality designate one official to be the voting delegate. Election of League 
leadership and adoption of resolutions are undertaken during the business meeting. One official from each 
municipality will make decisions that determine the direction of the League.   
 
In accordance with the League’s by-laws, each municipality’s vote is determined by population, and the 
League will use the Estimates of Population from the University of Florida.  
 
Conference registration materials were sent to each municipality via newsletter and are also available online 
at floridaleagueofcities.com/education-and-events/annual-conference. 
 
If you have any questions on voting delegates, please call (850) 701-3616 or email erussell@flcities.com. 
Voting delegate forms must be received by the League no later than July 28, 2021.   
 
Attachments: Form Designating Voting Delegate  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 138

Item #22.



  

 
 

 

2 of 2 

 
95th Annual Conference 
Florida League of Cities, Inc. 
August 12-14, 2021 
Orlando, Florida 
 
It is important that each member municipality sending delegates to the Annual Conference of the Florida 
League of Cities, designate one of their officials to cast their votes at the Annual Business Session.  League By-
Laws requires that each municipality select one person to serve as the municipalities voting delegate.  
Municipalities do not need to adopt a resolution to designate a voting delegate. 
 
Please fill out this form and return it to the League office so that your voting delegate may be properly 
identified. Voting delegate forms must be received by the League no later than July 28, 2021.   
 
Designation of Voting Delegate 
 
Name of Voting Delegate: __________________________________________________ 
 
Title: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Municipality of: __________________________________________________________ 
 
      
AUTHORIZED BY: 
 
 
                         ______________________________________________ 
             Name 
 
  _______________________________________________ 
  Title 
 
 
Return this form to: 
 
Eryn Russell 
Florida League of Cities, Inc. 
Post Office Box 1757 
Tallahassee, FL  32302-1757 
Fax: (850) 222-3806 
Email: erussell@flcities.com 
 

Page 139

Item #22.

mailto:erussell@flcities.com

	Top
	Item #1.	Copy of Solid Waste Ordinance O-14-2021
	Staff Report O-14-2021 Solid Waste Franchise Insurance coverage 061521
	Ordinance O-14-2021 Amending City Code 66-11(d)(1)f Solid Waste Franchise

	Item #3.	Council establishes workshop dates for reviewing the Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan for FY 2021/2022
	July 6, 2021 Staff Report - Workshop Dates

	Item #4.	Council establishes hearing dates for the first and final hearings to adopt the City of Green Cove Springs Operating Budget and Five Year Capital Improvement Plan for FY 2021/2022
	July 6, 2021 Staff Report - Hearing Dates

	Item #5.	GU Pay App #2 for CR 209 S and Pay App #1 for Wilkes Point Road
	General Undergrond Pay App 2, CR 209 S, pay App 1, Wilkes Staff Report, 7-5-21
	GU Pay App #2
	GU Pay App #2 SOV
	GU Pay App 1 Wilkes Pt Rd
	GU Pay App 1 SOV Wilkes Pt Rd

	Item #6.	Pipe / Conduit Purchasing Policy Exemption
	PVC Purchasing Policy Exemption

	Item #7.	Harbor Road Phase II AWWTF DR #2
	Disbursement Request #2, Advanced WWTF, 7-6-21 Staff Report
	Green Cove Springs Disb Req No. 2_signed

	Item #8.	FDOT Lighting, Maintenance, Compensation Agreement
	7.06.2021 - Staff Report - FDOT State Highway Lighting, Maintenance Agreement
	New FY 21-22 State Highway Lighting Agreement (AN491)
	Resolution No. R-13-2021 - FDOT - State Highway Lighting Agreement

	Item #9.	Staff Report of Painting of City Hall
	Staff report painting of City Hall
	Paint quote

	Item #10.	Vineyard Internal Affairs Course
	20210628133950
	ITEM-Staff-7512d91290844841aced3d76fc4f851b (1)

	Item #11.	Guzman Internal Affairs Course
	20210628133950
	ITEM-Staff-7512d91290844841aced3d76fc4f851b (1)

	Item #12.	Electric Conduit Funding
	Electric Conduit 7-6-21 Staff Report
	Electric Conduit Quotes

	Item #13.	Staff Report for KBT pay App # 1
	Staff report for KBT pay app # 1
	KBT pay App # 1
	Proposal Change Order 1-City of Green Cove

	Item #14.	ASACC Pipe Repair Staff Report
	ASACC Pipe Repair Staff report
	20210630145348

	Item #15.	HRAWWTF Williams Pay Request #2
	Contractor Pay Request  2, Phase II AWWTF, 7-6-21 Staff Report
	Contractor&#39;s Pay Request No. 2

	Item #16.	MINS 5/04/2021, 5/18/2021 REG
	2021-05-04 - Regular Minutes

	Item #17.	FDOT right-of-way maintenance agreement 2021-2024 Resolution R-12-2021
	Staff Report - FDOT ROW Maintenance Agreement - 2021-2024 - 070121
	Resolution No. R-12-2021 - FDOT - Maintenance Agreement - 2021-2024
	New Agreement for Green Cove Springs

	Item #18.	Food Truck Friday 2022 Dates
	Staff Report_Food Truck Friday 2022

	Item #19.	Proclamation Process
	7.06.2021 - Staff Report - Proclamation Process
	Proclamations - Ceremonial Guidelines - City of GCS - Application Form

	Item #20.	Terry's Pay App #5
	Staff Report - Terry&#39;s Pay App No 5 - 070621
	LC 2020-17, AFP No. 5

	Item #21.	FMPA - July 2021
	FMPA Monthly Report July 2021-word

	Item #22.	FLC CONF 2021 DELEGATE
	7.06.2021 - Staff Report - Voting Delegate for FLC Conference
	2021 Voting Delegate Memo

	Bottom

